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Dear Fellow Shareholder

1Q was nothor uc cE ssful yr ar for Cross Wc grey rsvr nuo md prof stron thaned our be am he md

dev lopc prod icts program that continue to ex to cu tomer Oier Lh last three years our rcv ri io growi

per yr ar and our net ncomn ms ml resed morc than fivefold We arc pror of th rose tr is thcy ir te 1am nt to

thr appe ii of our br rr ds the strength our stratcgme and the talent and hard work of our icc pie We ire unthu mastic

about our future and confident mm our ability to ontinue to rete meaningful hareholds vaiue

2012 Results and High lights

2012 ths ross Op ical mcii COG continued to drive our business COG ovormu mimcrcased lSoo lo $f $V

expanded both the Costa arid Native br mnds ints now doors and gcogr iphios built th best ri rmptmon sungla

program pursued tI orts por ormanco appars market with Costa br md inerchandi and introdu od thr N0mve

0dysey series with the pc.rrormance loris Our cormfid rice in thc Optical Groups hucmm c0 edO grow

potential is very hi is our authentic ands arid products attract now co uni eve day

01 ro /\cceo sory Division CAD had an uneven vs ar Attor two ye irs of xp insio the me off While

new products emerging markets and ncr every in the porate gift mo rkr drovr jrowt iii th the Amer arid

Asia cc onomic weakness in Europe Ic to doublmdigit decline in that geography In 201$ cxpe our AD me

will rr cover arid grow node sly as he iir macc iii urupo mm mpOvv the rp itt mrlet sp nd f5 \0fO

ormo smy and we strategic all levoragc thc iconc ross brand into high potenfial adlamormt cite orir

or the 0ar net income at Cros increased fro $8 million to $9 million ully mluted ir imnos per iars incr ed

to $OJO Our return on invested capital was 110 At the doss of the yr ar we had $12 million ir net ca fr rrm $4

roil ion in 2011 Thss esulO hays us entering 2013 with confidence
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We or piGonotu obout bt ngir the onto brond to ore pcople Our products or built with thor ghtfulness nd

hey re unique in then excellence And when we nncct consur ie to Cost thu sti tf Coste Arc cjly

wc continucd to introduce tf brond tc new morkets md new oudiencus Our st Aoqios ncludcd

Geographk Expanson

ConG urrontly ovoiloblo in opprc xirnr toly 60 of thu

rotoil doors thot wc hove torgetc tor tlnitec Stotes

distnbutic In 201 rowth with mojor ntionol rc toilc rn

uch cks Sporting Good Ilords ond Flibbett Sports

won sijnific ont In oddition we torgeted independ nt

donrs loxos thu Pock es ond the Nor tioo with solos

end morkrting invest ients Growth in thee key rnorkeG

outp sced overoll he wth by opprorirnotely 50

osto ini torI in rut it yr to di ivr- troffic its online

propc ties end enhonu their content me effoi tin poying

on trW to custodelmorc urn wos up mnd 000s
Focebook go ieoch neorly 00 000 tons

We ore tr vinq tc moxe osto notio II broird Wc II

pursue this exponsion disciplined rnonnu.r mokinc urn

th it the brond mcu cc iinuo urn expectotions when they

cncou rter it ond ru toiiers expectotions es they distribute it

Demographc xpanson

In oddit on to expon ling qeogrophico ly st xpondirig

deniogrophicolly sto torget thrce domogrophic

oron fish rrnen cull go students id coontol lifestyle

nor surners Within rh thren there is focus on bringing

more mole onsun em to the br nd

deverol key initiotives drovu aworc non on oles within

these groups In fishing Costos nvolvcrnent with the

lii to honnels Short Wrongle ond 0cc arc hs Greot

Whitu Short project generated over 213 million mpressions

the UA In the cc lIege rnotkot product plecement with

2leqc footb dl te irs ol rtg with Costas srx nsorship of

ir mjor events uc os Costo Grerkfo rt thu University of

Aleborno ond Chililest ot foxes AM hon helped to moku

mworecie of Costo ii ong college students the hqhost

of my Co5to dr mc gr iphic group In rstol ommunities

Cr sto ntinued censorship of Kr nny Chesnoy

go rem sted ovu IS lion improssion md is reoc hing

new oudioncu fo costs young women wf love thu

oostol lifestylc mt moy not fish

Co to is lust begir nng to ex end ts oc so tho iii

connumcrs on cc whol out thc re hots qc news

becou rs oworen of tIm Con brrnd bu Ids bn end

its core we scolo its rsiiress potent ol ignificontly

Costa Performance Appare and Accessories

In th post severol yeors onto ci thusiosts fiove bcei

vocol oboiit wcnting to proudly di ploy the to to bond

on th er hots ond hirts With thu growinq rt mum

etoilers we hove glodly ocr mmod stud them In 20

onto opporel sole were up more no iii 20 is sme

expond nq the offering end the oor in nc ttm product

is distributed Apparel is srgc odjocc mtng ir tc

which onto will suc fully npreod

PrescnpUon Sungass Expanson

The onto br mnd con nuincj to pnnctrot thc prc so iptic

nunglos rnork We suimchnd tlmu Cc sto prc cr ption

groni in Morch 011 For ttmc st of trot yc or end in

2012 we built distributicn drove oworeness of tfme proqr nm

snd errcd tt1 be.t .r err ir 31 mn

trodu We wc ru so enc ociro ju by our prcrg ess th rt in

August 2012 the Ccm to Rx 1mb primed It tote 01
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SEC

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington DC 20549 05 2013

FORM 10-K .-- 20549

ANNUAL REPORT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 29 2012

Commission File Number 1-6720

CROSS COMPANY
Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Rhode Island 05-0126220

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization IRS Employer Identification No
One Albion Road Lincoln Rhode Island 02865

Address of principal executive offices Zip Code

Registrants telephone number including area code 401 333-1200

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Class Common Stock $1 Par Value NASDAQ

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities

Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of

the Act Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant

was required to file such reports and has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days

XYes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Website if

any every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T

232.405 of this chapter during the preceding 12 months or shorter period that the registrant was required to

submit and post such files XYes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K 229.405 of this

chapter is not contained herein and will not be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive proxy or

information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer

or smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer

Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act
Yes XNo

The aggregate market value of the registrants voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates as of June 30

2012 the last business day of the registrants most recently completed second fiscal quarter was $88.8 million

The number of shares outstanding of each of the registrants classes of common stock as of February 23 2013 was

Class common stock 11434775 Shares

Class common stock 1804800 Shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of shareholders are incorporated by reference into Part

III of this report
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PART

Item BUSINESS

The A.T Cross Company the Company has two reportable segments Cross Accessory Division CAD and Cross

Optical Group COG For certain financial information with respect to these segments see Note to the Companys
consolidated financial statements included in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Cross Accessory Division

We manufacture and market fine quality writing instruments under the Cross brand consisting of ballpoint pens

fountain pens Selectip rolling ball pens and mechanical pencils We also manufacture and market variety of refills for

most of our product types In addition to Cross-branded writing instruments CAD manufactures and markets

FranklinCovey line of entry level price point refillable writing instruments The Company is an original equipment

manufacturer OEMof writing instruments In addition to writing instruments we also design and market variety of

personal and business accessories including leather goods reading glasses desk sets and stationery The Company has

license agreements with third party to develop and sell Cross watches and cufflinks The Company launches new pen

products and other personal accessories on bi-annual basis

Our writing instruments are offered in variety of styles and materials at various price points They are packaged and

sold as individual units or in matching sets The majority of writing instrument sales occur at suggested retail price points

between approximately $22 and $50 We believe we are market leader in the United States at these price points Products

in this price range include Classic Century Calais Aventura Stratford Cross Contour Cross Edge Cross Click Bailey

Beverly and selected ATX writing instruments The Cross Townsend Sauvage Cross Sentiment C-Series Apogee
Cross Affinity Masquerade Century II Tech3 and Tech4 lines as well as selected Classic Century and ATX writing

instruments provide the Company presence in the $55 to $300 price range Certain Classic Century Cross Townsend and

Special Edition writing instruments are priced over $300 The Sable Nile Revere Sage and Parasol writing instrument

product lines are sold to the Companys self-serve channels of distribution including the office superstore customers The

FranklinCovey brand provides the Company presence in the under $10 suggested retail price range for ballpoint pen
Cross leather goods range in price from $40 to $145 reading glasses are priced at $30 watch prices range

between

$100 and $330 desk sets are priced at $225 cufflinks from $50 to $80 and stationery from $20 to $25

The Company emphasizes styling innovation craftsmanship and quality in the design and production of all of its

products All Cross-branded writing instruments carry full warranty of unlimited duration against mechanical failure Our

watches are sold with limited two-year warranty and leather goods are sold with limited
one-year warranty

Globally Cross Accessory Division products are sold at over 10000 points of distribution in over 80 countries by our

direct sales force and manufacturers agents or representatives They are sold in the United States in over 5500 retailers

directly to consumers via the Companys website www.cross.com and at the Cross retail store Sales outside the United

States are made to foreign distributors and retailers worldwide by the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries Retail

accounts include gift stores department stores jewelers stationery office supply and pen specialty stores and United States

military post exchanges Wholesale accounts distribute products to retail outlets in those countries where the Company does

not maintain direct sales force or to those that purchase in small quantities Advertising specialty representatives market

products to business accounts that are typically engraved or display name or emblem and are used for gifts sales

promotions incentives or advertising

Cross Optical Group

The Companys COG segment consists of its wholly-owned subsidiary Cross Optical Group Inc which was formed on

January 2010 and is the legal entity of our two sunglass brands Costa and Native Costa was acquired in 2003 and

Native was purchased in 2008 This business designs manufactures and markets premium high-quality high-performance

polarized sunglasses under these brand names Combined our brands offer sunglasses in more than 88 styles and 25 lens

options most at suggested retail price points between approximately $89 and $279 Costa expanded its offerings in 2011 to

include prescription sunglasses at suggested retail price points between approximately $300 and $750 The COG segment

also sells apparel and accessory products such as hats t-shirts cords cases and backpacks

Our sunglass products are sold by employee representatives and manufacturers agents to approximately 7600 retail

accounts throughout the United States Retail accounts include optical and sunglass specialty shops department stores and

sporting goods retailers

Costa and Native sunglasses are sold with lifetime warranty against manufacturers defects in materials and

workmanship



Raw Materials

The Companys CAD segment obtains raw materials for use in writing instruments from both domestic and foreign

suppliers Metal and plastic pen parts are obtained from the United States U.S China Germany Japan India Malaysia

and Switzerland Coated parts are procured from the U.S and China Ink is procured from the U.S Germany China and

Japan

The majority of component materials for the COG segment are imported from highly specialized manufacturers located

in Europe and Asia

To maintain the highest level of product quality the Company relies on limited number of domestic and foreign

suppliers for certain raw materials and manufacturing technologies The Company may be adversely affected in the event

that these suppliers cease operations or if pricing terms become less favorable The Company believes but cannot be

assured that the raw materials currently supplied by these vendors could be obtained from other sources and that the

manufacturing technologies could either be developed internally or that suitably similar technologies could be located

Patents Licenses and Trademarks

The Company directly or through its subsidiaries has certain writing instrument timepiece accessory
and optical

trademark registrations and/or pending trademark applications in the United States and many foreign countries including but

not limited to its principal trademark CROSS and the FRUSTO-CONICAL DESIGN on the top of its writing

instruments and the trademarks COSTA DEL MAR and NATIVE The principal trademark CROSS is of

fundamental importance to the CAD segment and the trademarks COSTA DEL MAR COSTA and NATIVE are of

fundamental importance to the COG segment The Company directly or through its subsidiaries holds certain United States

and foreign writing instrurrient patents and/or has filed United States and foreign patent applications covering products

including but not limited 10 Cross Townsend Edge Tech4 and the Companys ball-point pen mechanism While the

Company pursues practice of seeking patent protection for novel inventions or designs the business is not dependent upon

obtaining and maintaining patents

Seasonal Business

The CAD segment has historically generated its highest sales in the second half of the year approximately one-third in

the fourth quarter The COG segment has historically generated its highest sales in the first half of the year approximately

one-third in the second quarter

Working Capital Requirements

Writing instrument and sunglass inventory balances tend to be highest in anticipation of new product launches and

before peak selling seasons The Company offers and may offer in the future extended payment terms primarily to

domestic retail writing instrument customers at certain points during the year

Customers

The Company is not dependent upon any single customer for more than 5% of its consolidated revenues

Backlog of Orders

The backlog of orders is not significant factor in the Companys business



Competition

The global non-disposable writing instrument market is estimated to be approximately $2 billion at retail It is

competitive in particular with respect to product quality brand recognition and price There are numerous manufacturers of

ballpoint rolling ball and fountain pens and mechanical pencils in the U.S and abroad Many of these manufacturers

produce lower-priced writing instruments than those produced by the Company Although the Company is major producer

of ballpoint rolling ball and fountain pens and mechanical pencils in the $22 to $50 price range other writing instrument

companies have significantly higher sales volumes from broader product line across wider range of prices or have greater

resources as divisions of larger corporations The Company emphasizes styling innovation craftsmanship and quality in the

design and production of all of its products

The plano sunglass market in the U.S is estimated to be $3.5 billion at retail The Companys COG segment under the

brand names Costa and Native compete in the premium-priced $50 retail sunglass market segment which is estimated to

be $2.4 billion at retail The prescription sunglass market segment is estimated to be approximately $5.0 billion at retail

Many other sunglass companies also compete in these segments

See also the Risk Factors in Item IA of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Research and Development

The Company had expenditures for research and development of new products and improvement of existing products of

approximately $2.7 million $2.7 million and $2.8 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively For additional discussion

see Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

Environment

The Company believes it is in compliance with all Federal state and local environmental laws and regulations The

Company believes that future capital expenditures for environmental control facilities will not be material See Item Legal

Proceedings and Note to the Companys consolidated financial statements in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Employees

The Company had approximately 1030 employees worldwide at December 29 2012 none of which were subject to

collective bargaining agreements

International Operations and Export Sales

Approximately 38% of the Companys sales in 2012 were in foreign markets The primary foreign markets are in Europe

and Asia Sales of the Companys products to foreign distributors are subject to import duties in many countries The

operations of the Companys foreign subsidiaries and branches are subject to the effects of
currency fluctuations the

availability of U.S dollar exchange exchange control and other restrictive regulations Undistributed earnings of our foreign

subsidiaries generally are not subject to current U.S Federal and state income taxes as such earnings are considered

permanently reinvested in the growth of business outside the U.S The Company manufactures almost all of its core writing

instruments in China See Note and Note to the Companys consolidated financial statements in Item of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K For the effect of foreign sales on the Companys results of operations see Managements Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Availability of Securities and Exchange Commission Filings

The Companys website address is www.cross.com The Company makes available free of charge through the Investor

Relations section of its website its Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form l0-Q Current Reports on

Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials have been electronically

filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC Information on the Companys website is not

incorporated into this Annual Report



Executive Officers of the Company

The following are the executive officers of the Company each of whom serves until his or her successor is elected and

has qualified their respective ages as of December 29 2012 and their principal positions

____
YEAR IN WHICH

NAME AGE
FIRST HELD OFFICE

David Whalen 55 President and Chief Executive Officer 1999

Kevin Mahoney 53 Senior Vice President Finance and 2005

Chief Financial Officer

Gary Simpson 61 Corporate Controller Chief Accounting Officer 1997

Charles Mellen 49 President Cross Accessory Division 2005

Tina Benik 53 Vice President Legal and Human Resources 1993

Corporate Secretary

Joseph Bassi 60 Finance Director 1997

Charles MacDonald 59 President Cross Optical Group Inc 2003

Prior to becoming President and ChiefExecutive Officer in 1999 David Whalen was President North America of

Ray-Ban Sun Optics division of the Luxottica Group S.p.A from 1997 to 1999

Prior to becoming Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer in 2009 Kevin Mahoney was Vice

President Finance and Chief Financial Officer from 2005 to 2009 From 2004 to 2005 Mr Mahoney was Director

Corporate Development at the Raytheon Company and from 1984 to 2004 Mr Mahoney was with Deloitte Touche

LLP most recently serving as Partner

Prior to becoming Corporate Controller in 1997 Gary Simpson was the Controller Lincoln Operations from 1992

to 1997

Prior to becoming President Cross Accessory Division in 2007 Charles Mellen was Senior Vice President Global

Marketing and Sales from 2006 to 2007 and Vice President Global Marketing from 2005 to 2006 From 1996 to

2004 Mr Mellen was Vice President of Marketing at Tumi Inc

Prior to becoming Vice President Legal and Human Resources Corporate Secretary in 2000 Tina Benik was Vice

President Legal General Counsel and Corporate Secretary from 1993 to 2000

Prior to becoming Finance Director in 1997 Joseph Bassi was Manager Financial Planning from 1996 to 1997 and

Manager Budgeting and Financial Planning from 1987 to 1996

Prior to becoming President Cross Optical Group Inc in 2010 Charles MacDonald was President Cross Optical

Group and Costa Del Mar Sunglasses Inc from 2007 to 2010 From 2003 to 2007 he was Vice President A.T Cross

Optical Division and President Costa Del Mar Sunglasses Inc From 1996 to 2002 Mr MacDonald was President of

Outlook Eyewear Company division of the Luxottica Group S.p.A

Item 1A RISK FACTORS

The following section describes certain of the more prominent risks and uncertainties inherent in our operations The

risks and uncertainties below are those that we currently consider material however this section does not intend to discuss

all possible risks and uncertainties that company like Cross with broad international operations could experience We are

susceptible to macroeconomic downturns in the United States or abroad that may affect the general economic climate and the

performance of our customers Similarly the price of our securities is subject to volatility due to fluctuations in general

market conditions differences in our results of operations from estimates and projections generated by the investment

community and other faclors beyond our control Further there could be other risks and uncertainties that are not presently

known to us or that may become more significant to us These Risk Factors should be read in conjunction with the factors

discussed elsewhere in this and other of our filings with the SEC and in materials incorporated by reference in these filings

We undertake no obligation to correct or update any forward-looking statements or statements of risk related thereto for any

reason



We depend on the success of new products Our ability to sustain profitability and growth in sales depends largely on

consumer acceptance of numerous new products recently introduced and.planned for introduction Further consumer

preferences are continuously changing The markets in which we sell are highly competitive and there is no assurance that

consumer acceptance will be realized to the degree necessary to generate continued growth in our sales and earnings

Our global manufacturing sales and distribution operations make us susceptible to the risks of overseas operations

We have sales offices and certain operations in ten countries and we have distributors worldwide In 2012 approximately

38% of our revenue came from sales to locations outside the United States We may be adversely affected in the event that

global economic uncertainty erodes consumer confidence and purchasing Most of our products are manufactured overseas

Operating internationally exposes us to changes in export controls and other laws or regulations as well as the general

political and economic conditions security risks natural disasters health conditions and possible disruptions in

transportation networks of the various countries in which we operate which could result in an adverse effect on our business

and results of operations in such countries

Incorrect forecasts of consumer demand could adversely affrct our results of operations The Company manufactures

product based on forecasts of consumer demand These forecasts are based on multiple assumptions If we inaccurately

forecast consumer demand we may hold inadequate excess or obsolete inventory that would reduce our profit margins and

adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets

impairment analyses rely on forecasted cash flows resulting from our expectations of consumer demand Failure to meet

these forecasts could result in an impairment of goodwill or other indefinite-lived intangible assets which would impact

results of operations

Our success depends on our ability to retain and recruit sufficient number of qualified employees in competitive

environmenL Our success depends in part on our retention and recruitment of skilled personnel including technical

distribution sourcing marketing sales management and staff personnel There can be no assurance that we will be able to

successfully retain and recruit the key personnel that we need

Our dependence on certain suppliers may leave us temporarily without adequate access to raw materials or products

To maintain the highest level of product quality we rely on limited number of domestic and foreign suppliers for certain

raw materials manufacturing technologies and certain finished products We may be adversely affected in the event that

these suppliers cease operations or if pricing terms become less favorable We believe but cannot guarantee that we could

obtain the raw materials currently supplied by these vendors from other sources and that we could either develop the

manufacturing technologies internally or locate suitably similar technologies If we are unable to replace key supplier we

may face delays in delivering finished products according to our customers demands which could have an adverse effect on

our financial performance

Overseas manufacturing makes us dependent upon the performance of our overseas partners As result of our

manufacturing initiative we manufacture most of our finished products in China Our manufacturing operations in China are

supported by local partner from whom Cross leases the building housing Cross physical plant

Unfavorable resolution ofpending or future litigation matters could prove costly to us In 2002 the Company
received so-called notice letter under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act

CERCLA from the Federal Environmental Protection Agency EPA alleging that the Company is Potentially

Responsible Party PRP in one Superfund case The Company has reached settlement of the case and paid settlement

amount of approximately $0.2 million in 2010 The EPA is expected to select remedy for the Site in 2013 At that time

the EPA will initiate an administrative process the Special Notice Process pursuant to CERCLA whereby the EPA will

request that those entities that the EPA contends arranged for the disposal of hazardous materials at the Site the PRPs
undertake the selected remedy at the Site The EPA contends that the Company is PRP at the Site During the Special

Notice Process the Company and the other PRPs will engage in negotiations with the EPA regarding the remedy and among
themselves regarding the contribution of each PRP to overall remediation costs Neither the cost of the remedy nor the

identity of all PRPs is known at this time Therefore it is not possible to assess the outcome of the Special Notice Process as

it may relate to the Companys contribution to remediation costs If we were required to fully fund the remediation of site

the statutory framework would allow us to pursue rights to contribution from other PRPs

We are involved from time to time in litigation matters An unfavorable resolution of pending litigation could have

material adverse effect on our financial condition Litigation may result in substantial costs and expenses and significantly

divert the attention of our management regardless of the outcome There can be no assurance that we will be able to achieve

favorable settlement of pending litigation or obtain favorable resolution of litigation if it is not settled In addition

current and future litigation governmental proceedings or environmental matters could lead to increased costs or

interruptions of our normal business operations



Item lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

Item PROPERTIES

The Company leases its Lincoln Rhode Island corporate headquarters housing corporate
offices and CAD segment

administrative and retail facilities Our leased facility in Dong Guan City China houses the CAD segments manufacturing

operations and the segment also leases administrative and/or warehouse facilities for its operations in the United Kingdom

France Japan Hong Kong Taiwan Singapore and China In addition the CAD segment leases retail facility in the United

Kingdom

The Companys COG segment leases administrative and/or warehouse facilities in Florida and Colorado

Item LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company was named as one of approximately ninety defendants in contribution suit brought by CCL/Unilever

relating to the J.M Mills Landfill Site the Site which is part of the Peterson/Puritan Superfund Site in Cumberland

Rhode Island These complaints alleged that the Company was liable under CERCLA for contribution for Site investigation

costs The Company has reached settlement of the case and paid settlement amount of approximately $0.2 million in 2010

The EPA is expected to select remedy for the Site in 2013 At that time the EPA will initiate an administrative process

the Special Notice Process pursuant to CERCLA whereby the EPA will request that those entities that the EPA contends

arranged for the disposal of hazardous materials at the Site the PRPs undertake the selected remedy at the Site The EPA

contends that the Company is PRP at the Site During the Special Notice Process the Company and the other PRPs will

engage in negotiations with the EPA regarding the remedy and among themselves regarding the contribution of each PRP to

overall remediation costs Neither the cost of the remedy nor the identity of all PRPs is known at this time Therefore it is

not possible to assess the outcome of the Special Notice Process as it may relate to the Companys contribution to remediatiôn

costs

The Company is involved in various other litigation and legal matters that have arisen in the ordinary course of business

To its knowledge management believes that the ultimate resolution of any of those existing matters will not have material

adverse effect on the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations

Item MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable



PART II

Item MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

The Companys Class common stock is traded on NASDAQ symbol ATX There is no established trading market for

the Companys Class common stock At December 29 2012 there were approximately 1000 shareholders of record of the

Companys Class common stock and two shareholders of record of the Companys Class common stock The weighted

average numbers of total shares outstanding was 12334775 and 12194712 during 2012 and 2011 respectively

Market Price of and Dividends on the Registrants Common Equity and Related Shareholder

Matters

High and low sales prices of Class common stock for the last two years were

2012 2011

OUARTER HIGH LOW QUARTER FIIGI-1 LOW
First $12.35 $8.00 First $11.29 $8.50

Second $12.46 $9.24 Second $12.85 $9.53

Third $10.91 $9.37 Third $16.20 $8.85

Fourth $10.90 $8.38 Fourth $13.17 $9.44

The Company intends to retain earnings to finance the growth of the Company

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the performance of the Companys Class common stock to the Russell 2000 Index as
the Companys peer group index the NYSE MKT Composite and the NASDAQ Composite over the Companys last five

years The graph assumes that the value of the investment in the Companys Class common stock and each index was $100

at December 31 2007 and that all dividends were reinvested

COMPARISON OF 5-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

among the A.T Cross Company the Russell 2000 Index

the NYSE Amex Composite and the NASDAQ Composite
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September 30 2012- October27 2012

October 28 2012 November 24 2012

November 25 2012 December 29 2012

Total

TOTAL

NUMBER OF

SHARES
PURCHASED

50164

55998

79941

186103

AVERAGE
PRiCE PAID

PER SHARE

$9.93

$9.33

$10.03

$9.79

TOTAL NUMBER OF

SHARES PURCHASED

AS PART OF PUBLICLY
ANNOUNCED PLANS

OR PROGRAMS

50164

55998

79941

186.103

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF

SHARES THAT MAY YET

BE PURCHASED UNDER
THE PLANS OR

PROGRAMS

705473

649475

569534

In 2008 the Companys Board of Directors authorized plan to purchase up to 1.0 million shares of Cross Class

common stock depending on market conditions On February 22 2012 the Companys Board of Directors authorized 0.7

million share increase to the 2008 program Cumulatively through December 29 2012 the Company purchased

approximately .1 million shares of stock under this plan for approximately $7.6 million at an average price per share of

$6.71 In 2012 the Company purchased
total of approximately 0.4 million shares under this plan for approximately $4.0

million at an average price per share of$ 10.04

Item SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Included in 2008 is $3.9 million charge to operating income and net income for an impairment of goodwill

Company/Index/Composite 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

A.T Cross Company 100.00 27.86 52.40 96.69 13.03 108.02

Russell 2000 100.00 66.21 84.20 106.82 102.36 119.09

NYSEAmexComposite 100.00 62.15 82.82 104.10 112.59 121.01

NASDAQComposite 100.00 59.10 82.19 97.23 98.85 110.91

The Company has chosen he Russell Group 2000 as meaningful peer group against which to compare its performance

The Russell Group 2000 represents broad based group of small capitalization stocks and is generally believed to be

indicative of market performance for small capitalization companies

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

OPERATIONS THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS
Net Sales 180508 174637 158312 141764

Operating Income 13274 12046 9070 845

Net Income Loss 9148 8310 6208 1559

PER SHARE DATA DCLLARS
Net Income Loss Per Share Basic 0.74 0.68 0.49 0.1

Diluted 0.70 0.64 0.48 0.11

FINANCIAL POSITION THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS
Total Assets 161339 155415 146720 141279

Long-Term Retirement Plan Obligations 19808 22636 16274 14726

Long-Term Debt Less Current Maturities 21221 19221 19721

Other Long-Term Liabilities 1929 1855 2111 2672

Shareholders Equity 85078 77653 74559 73709

160146

1203

1032

0.07

0.07

146515

14681

21721

4447

76216



Item MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

Overview

A.T Cross Company the Company is designer and marketer of branded personal accessories including writing

instruments reading glasses personal and business accessories and sunglasses

The Company operates in competitive categories The Company has challenged itself to build upon its unique attributes

in order to develop vibrant diversified and forward-looking company poised for sustainable growth and long-term profit

Such attributes include strong brand names an over 160 year heritage reputation for quality and craftsmanship global

distribution network and strong balance sheet The Company established several strategic initiatives to build upon these

attributes and overcome its challenges including becoming an innovative leader in the fine writing category extending the

Cross brand into new categories developing avenues for diversification streamlining its CAD operating structure and

seeking additional brand assets to add scale COG has provided the business with an avenue of diversification and added two

new brands to the Companys portfolio Costa and Native These brands uphold the Companys reputation as an innovative

leader with award-winning high-quality products Details on how the Companys two business segments are achieving these

initiatives are presented below

In February 2013 the Company announced that it is exploring strategic alternatives for its Cross Accessory Division

The Company has not made decision to pursue any specific transaction or any other strategic alternative and there is no set

timetable for the strategic review
process

Cross Accessory Division CAD
The Company has been manufacturer and marketer of fine quality writing instruments since 1846 Sold primarily

under the Cross brand ballpoint fountain and Selectip rolling ball
pens

and mechanical pencils are offered in variety of

styles and finishes Cross also manufactures and markets line of FranklinCovey entry level price point refillable writing

instruments Also under the Cross brand CAD offers variety of personal and business accessories including leather goods

reading glasses desk sets and stationery The Company has license agreements with third party to develop and sell Cross

watches and cufflinks

CAD is competing vigorously to build its position in terms of product innovation marketing and merchandising To this

end number of initiatives many of which are described below have been implemented In 2012 approximately 9% of

CAD revenue was derived from new products launched into the marketplace In 2012 CAD launched several new writing

instrument product lines Cross Click Tech4 Sauvage Forever Pearl Special Edition Year of the Snake Disney

Anniversary pen as well as the addition of stylus feature to our Tech3 multifunction pen The Company also launched

several gift sets for its office superstore customers for the 2012 holiday season

In 2012 all leather goods reading glasses watches desk sets cufflinks and stationery represented approximately 7% of

CAD sales The Companys stationery collection expanded in 2012 with the addition of several new fashionable styles and

colors

In addition to bringing new products to market in 2012 Cross expanded the global self-serve program The Company
rolled out over 300 new fixtures featuring range of reading glasses stationery and writing instruments

The Cross brand has strong consumer awareness and more importantly consumers associate the Cross name with

innovation quality and style The strong awareness of our name and the positive attributes associated with our brand support

the extension of the Cross brand into related personal accessory categories CAD has moved into categories that allow us to

further utilize our existing sourcing infrastructure and global distribution network priority for all of our brand extensions

is to incorporate the quality design and craftsmanship that consumers enjoy from Cross fine writing instruments We have

developed foothold in these categories and look forward to further strengthening our presence in select categories in 2013

Cross Optical Group COG
The Companys COG segment consists of its wholly-owned subsidiary Cross Optical Group Inc This business designs

manufactures and markets high-quality high-performance polarized sunglasses under the brand names Costa and Native

Founded in Florida in 1983 the Costa brand has developed superior reputation for its advanced polarized lens

technology and functional frame design Costa upholds the Companys commitment to delivering exceptional product

itmovation and quality to consumers Costas lenses are renowned for their clarity the patented 580 lens technology is

considered by many to be one of the best performing sunglass lens in the marketplace In 2011 Costa entered into the



prescription sunglass business Costas core market has traditionally been the saltwater fishing enthusiast in the southeastern

United States As such Costa has long-term commitment to conservation initiatives that protect and sustain vital fisheries

Costa has expanded its marketing efforts to reach consumers beyond its core market by developing consumer awareness in

other fishing categories geographies and demographics Costa sponsors related lifestyle activities such as Kenny Chesney

concert tours and sells limited edition Kenny Chesney sunglasses Costas collection features broad range of styles that

appeal to wide consumer demographic The brand is expanding geographically in both domestic and international markets

Native which was founded in 1994 also specializes in polarized sunglasses Native products are feature-rich and are

priced from $89 to $139 The collection consists primarily of high-performance sport wraps that are designed for mountain

and trail enthusiasts who are active in the human powered sports such as biking running and climbing Native frames are

very light weight and known for their exceptional fit features sought after by professional athletes and active sport

enthusiasts alike Natives Odyssey series launched in 2012 features the N3 lens one of the most advanced polarized

lenses on the market

The creation of the Cross Optical Group has proven to be very successful As result the Company is benefiting from

revenue diversification and substantial contribution to the bottom line

Comparison of Fiscal 2012 with Fiscal 2011

CAD
COG

PERCENTAGE CHANGE

4.8%
14.9%

3.4%

The following chart details net sales performance by segment and operating unit

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS FISCAL 2012

CAD 97222

COG 83286

180508

FISCAL 2011

102131

72506

174637Consolidated Net Sales
___________________

Consolidated net sales were $180.5 million in 2012 compared to $174.6 million in 2011 The effect of foreign exchange

was unfavorable to consolidated 2012 sales results by approximately $1.1 million or 0.6 percentage point

CAD sales increases in the America and Asia regions were offset by declines in Europe The effect of foreign exchange

was unfavorable to CAD 2012 sales results by approximately $1.1 million or 1.0 percentage point

COG sales in 2012 were driven by growth of the Costa brand The increase in Costa sales was due to new product

launches expanded distribution an increase in revenue from repairs apparel and accessories as well as the 2011 introduction

of Costa Rx prescription sunglasses Native sales were lower due to supply chain issues

The following chart details gross profit margins for both segments as well as the consolidated
gross profit margins

FISCAL 2012 FISCAL 2011 PERCENTAGE POINT CHANGE

52.3% 53.2% 0.9

58.2% 58.9% 0.7

Consolidated Gross Profit Margins 55.0% 55.6% 0.6

Consolidated selling general and administrative SGA expenses were approximately $75.2 million 0.9% higher

than 2011 SGA expenses were 41.6% of sales in 2012 compared to 42.6% of sales in 2011 SGA expenses
for the CAD

segment were approximately $45.3 million or 46.5% of sales compared to $47.2 million or 46.2% of sales in 2011

Foreign currency exchange gains losses that are included in the CAD segment SGA expenses approximated $0.3 million

in fiscal 2012 and $1.7 million in 2011 COG segment SGA expenses of $29.9 million were 9.8% higher than 2011

primarily due to higher selling expenses related to the sales volume increase

Research and development RD expenses were approximately $2.7 million in 2012 and 2011 RD expenses were

approximately 2% of sales in 2012 and 2011

Interest expense was $0.5 million and $0.7 million in 2012 and 2011 respectively Lower interest expense in 2012 was

due to lower average borrowings

In 2012 the Companys effective tax rate was 28.3% compared to the Federal tax rate of 35.0% This difference was due

to the effect of income sourced from lower taxed foreign jurisdictions The income tax expense was also favorably impacted

by the recognition of $0.3 million of tax benefits the realization of which was previously considered uncertain For an

analysis of income taxes see Note to the Companys consolidated financial statements in Item of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K

As result of the foregoing consolidated net income in fiscal 2012 was $9.1 million $0.74 basic and $0.70 diluted net

income
per share compared to fiscal 2011 net income of $8.3 million $0.68 basic and $0.64 diluted net income

per share
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Comparison of Fiscal 2011 with Fiscal 2010

The following chart details net sales performance by segment and operating unit

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS FISCAL 2011 FISCAL 2010

CAD 102131 97776

COG 72506 60536

Consolidated Net Sales 174637 158312

PERCENTAGE CHANGE
4.5%

19.8%

10.3%

PERCENTAGE POINT CHANGE

0.5

0.2

0.1

Consolidated net sales were $174.6 million in 2011 compared to $158.3 million in 2010 The effect of foreign exchange

was favorable to consolidated 2011 sales results by approximately $2.4 million or 1.5 percentage points

CAD sales benefitted from the economic recovery as every region reported higher sales performance from
year ago

The effect of foreign exchange was favorable to CAD 2011 sales results by approximately $2.4 million or 2.4 percentage

points

COG sales in 2011 were primarily driven by growth of the Costa brand The increase in Costa sales was due to new

product launches aimed to appeal to non-fishing demographic expanded distribution an increase in revenue from repairs

apparel and accessories as well as the 2011 introduction of Costa Rx prescription sunglasses Native brand sales also

increased from the prior year

The following chart details
gross profit margins for both segments as well as the consolidated gross profit margins

FISCAL 2011 FISCAL 2010
_____________________________

CAD 53.2% 53.7%

COG 58.9% 59.1%

Consolidated Gross Profit Margins 55.6% 55.7%

Consolidated selling general and administrative SGA expenses were approximately $74.4 million 8.2% higher

than 2010 SGA expenses were 42.6% of sales in 2011 compared to 43.5% of sales in 2010 SGA expenses for the CAD
segment were approximately $47.2 million or 46.2% of sales compared to $45.7 million or 46.7% of sales in 2010

Foreign currency exchange losses that are included in the CAD segment SGA expenses approximated $1.7 million and $1.2

million in fiscal 2011 and 2010 respectively COG segment SGA expenses of $27.2 million were 17.7% higher than 2010

primarily due to higher selling and marketing expenses related to the sales volume increase

Research and development RD expenses were approximately $2.7 million in 2011 and $2.8 million in 2010 RD
expenses were approximately 2% of sales in 2011 and 2010

Interest expense was $0.7 million and $1.0 million in 2011 and 2010 respectively Lower interest expense in 2011 was

due to lower interest rates

Other expense income was expense of $0.2 million and $0.3 million in 2011 and 2010 respectively

In 2011 the Companys effective tax rate was 25.5% compared to the Federal tax rate of 35.0% This difference was due

to the effect of income sourced from lower taxed foreign jurisdictions For fiscal
years 2008 through 2010 the Companys

earnings in China were subject to tax rate of 12.5% which is half the statutory tax rate Beginning in 2011 earnings in

China are subject to the full statutory rate of 25% The income tax expense was also favorably impacted by the recognition

of $0.2 million of tax benefits the realization of which was previously considered uncertain For an analysis of income taxes

see Note to the Companys consolidated financial statements in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

As result of the foregoing consolidated net income in fiscal 2011 was $8.3 million $0.68 basic and $0.64 diluted net

income per share compared to fiscal 2010 net income of $6.2 million $0.49 basic and $0.48 diluted net income per share

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically the Companys sources of liquidity and capital resources have been its cash and cash equivalents cash
short term investments cash generated from operations and amounts available under the Companys line of credit These

sources have been sufficient in the past to support the Companys routine operating requirements capital projects

contributions to the retirement plans stock repurchase programs and debt service The Company expects its future cash

needs in 2013 will be met by these historical sources of liquidity and capital

Cash provided by operating activities was $16.9 million for fiscal 2012 reflecting continued positive cash generation

from operations The Company was able to fund financing and investing activities described below and end 2012 with cash

and short-term investments balance of $27.3 million at December 29 2012 up $1.4 million from December 31 2011

Total inventory was $38.0 million at December 29 2012 an increase of$l.5 million since December 31 2011 CAD
inventory decreased $1.6 million and COG inventory increased $3.1 million The primary reason for the decrease in CAD
inventory was strict inventory control due to declining CAD sales COGs increase was due to increased levels of Native

inventory and higher projected first quarter 2013 sales
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The Company made cash contributions in 2012 of approximately $5.8 million to its defined benefit pension plans $2.5

million of which was an additional voluntary contribution The Company expects to contribute $2.1 million to its defined

benefit pension plans in 2013 The Company expects to meet or exceed its minimum funding requirements for its defined

benefit plans in future years The Company anticipates these future funding requirements to be between $2.1 million and

$3.1 million per year Additionally the Company made cash contributions in 2012 of approximately $0.7 million to its

defined contribution retirement plans and expects to contribute $0.9 million to its defined contribution retirement plans in

2013

Cash used in investing activities of $6.2 million principally reflects additions to property plant and equipment of

approximately $5.6 million In fiscal 2013 the Company expects capital expenditures to be approximately $8.0 million

Cash provided by financing activities for the fiscal 2012 principally reflects the repayment of $6.2 million on the

Companys credit facility and the acquisition of treasury shares under the Companys stock buyback program in 2008 the

Companys Board of Directors authorized plan to purchase up to 1.0 million shares of Cross Class common stock

depending on market condLtions On February 22 2012 the Companys Board of Directors authorized 0.7 million share

increase to the 2008 program Cumulatively through December 29 2012 the Company purchased approximately 1.1

million shares of stock under this plan for approximately $7.6 million at an average price per
share of $6.71 In 2012 the

Company purchased total of approximately 0.4 million shares under this plan for approximately $4.0 million at an average

price per share of$10.04

The Company expects fiscal 2013 research and development expenses to be approximately $3.0 million

The Company has $40 million secured line of credit with bank This credit facility matures on July 28 2013 The

Company intends to secure new credit facility prior to July 28 2013 Under the current agreement the Company has the

option to borrow at various interest rates depending upon the type of borrowings made and the Companys consolidated

leverage ratio At December 29 2012 the Company had $15.0 million outstanding on this line of credit bearing interest at

rate of 2.0% and the unused and available portion was $25.0 million The Company was in compliance with its various debt

covenants as of December 29 2012 The agreement requires the Company to maintain minimum consolidated tangible net

worth computed at each year end maximum level of capital expenditures and minimum ratio of adjusted EBITDA to

required debt service payments over any four-quarter period each of which is calculated in accordance with the agreement

COVENANT COVENANT CALCULATED COMPANY
DESCRIPTION REQUIREMENT VALUE DECEMBER 29 2012

Consolidated Tangible Net Worth Cannot be less than $37.5 million plus 50% of Net $61.2 million

Income for fiscal years after 2010 or $46.2 million

Capital Expenditures Cannot exceed the greater of $10 million $6 million

in year or $10 million plus the prior

year $10 million cap less expenditures

Consolidated Leverage Ratio Cannot exceed 2.75 to 0.711

The Company believes that existing cash and cash provided by operations supplemented as appropriate by the

Companys borrowing arrangements will be adequate to finance its foreseeable operating and capital requirements the stock

repurchase plans and contributions to the retirement plans Should operating cash flows in 2013 not materialize as projected

the Company has number of planned alternatives to ensure that it will have sufficient cash to meet its operating needs

These alternatives include implementation of strict cost controls on discretionary spending and delaying non-critical research

and development capital projects and completion of the stock repurchase plan

At the end of fiscal 2012 cash and short-term investments available for domestic operations was approximately $17.3

million and cash available for international operations was approximately $10.0 million

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

Interest rate swap agreements effectively fix the interest rate on portion of the Companys line of credit at 1.2%

The Company leases manufacturing office and warehouse space and certain equipment under non-cancelable operating

leases All leases expire prior to the end of 2026 Future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable leases including

renewal options the Company believes it will exercise and other contractual obligations at December 29 2012 were

approximately
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LESSTHAN 1T03 3T05 MORETHAN5
THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS TOTAL YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS

Line of Credit Including Interest 15171 15171

Operating Leases 27279 3758 8581 2959 11981

Uncertain Tax Liabilities 464 21 298 88 57

Pension Plan Obligations 21485 2139 8316 4978 6052

Purchase Obligations 5123 4396 727

Total 69522 25485 17922 8025 18090

Interest on the line of credit was calculated using the interest rate as of December 29 2012 over the remaining life of

the note

The Company expects to meet or exceed its minimum funding requirements for its defined benefit retirement plans in

future years Though there is uncertainty as to the exact amount and timing of these payments the Company

anticipates the future funding requirements to be between $2.1 million and $3.1 million per year

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has no material off balance sheet arrangements

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Companys two operating segments are subject to the effects of general inflation as well as fluctuations in foreign

currencies Policies and programs are in place to manage the potential risks in these areas The Company has generally been

successful in controlling cost increases due to general inflation The Company continues to review its suppliers in order to

obtain lower costs and higher quality on many of its raw materials and purchased components

The Company typically enters into foreign currency exchange contracts to economically hedge that portion of its net

financial position exposed to foreign currency fluctuations

New Accounting Pronouncements

For description of new accounting pronouncements that affect the Company and the status of the Companys

implementation thereof see the New Accounting Pronouncements section of Note to the Companys consolidated

financial statements in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K None are expected to have material impact on the

Companys consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Managements discussion and analysis of financial condition results of operations and cash flows are based upon our

consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in

the United States The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the

reported amounts of assets liabilities revenues and expenses as well as related disclosures of contingent liabilities We
evaluate our policies and estimates on an ongoing basis including those related to tax contingencies inventory adjustments

warranty reserves retirement obligations impairment of assets and revenue recognition Management bases its estimates on

historical experience and various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances the results of

which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent

from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

We have identified the following policies as critical to an understanding of our results of operations and financial

condition This is not comprehensive list of our accounting policies In many cases the accounting treatment of

particular transaction is specifically dictated by generally accepted accounting principles with no need for managements

judgment in its application There are also areas in which managements judgment in selecting any available alternative

would not produce materially different result For further discussion of our accounting policies see Note Significant

Accounting Policies to the Companys consolidated financial statements in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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Inventory Methods and Realizable Value Our global inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market

which requires us to estimate adjustments for both obsolescence and the market value we can expect to receive for our on

hand inventory Since we are required to produce our product with sufficient lead time to satisfy global distribution and

expected demand during seasonal peak periods we are subject to the risks of consumer acceptance of the products we have

produced We assess our need for obsolescence and market value adjustments based on variety of factors including

historical demand future marketing plans and alternative uses for raw material and work-in-process

Warranty Reserves CADs Cross-branded writing instruments are sold with full warranty of unlimited duration

against mechanical failure Costa and Native sunglasses are sold with lifetime warranty against defects in materials and

workmanship In establishing the accrual for warranty costs management analyzes trends of several factors measured over

period of several years
that impact the Companys cost to service the warranties The most significant factors include the

operating costs of the servLce department unit sales the number of units that are returned for warranty repair and the cost of

product repairs The estimates affecting the warranty reserve are updated annually

Retirement Obligations Two critical assumptions the discount rate and the expected return on plan assets are

important elements of pension expense and liability measurement We evaluate these critical assumptions annually Other

assumptions involve demographic factors such as retirement mortality turnover and rate of compensation increases The

discount rate enables us to state expected future cash flow as present value on the measurement date The guideline for

setting this rate is high-quality long-term corporate bond rate lower discount rate increases the present value of benefit

obligations and increases pension expense We decreased our discount rates to 3.73% in 2012 from 4.21% in 2011 on

domestic plans and to 3.3% in 2012 from 4.7% in 2011 on foreign plans to reflect market interest rate conditions To

determine the expected long-term rate of return on the plan assets we consider the current and expected asset allocation as

well as historical and expected returns on each plan asset class lower expected rate of return on pension plan assets will

increase pension expense Our long-term expected return on plan assets was 7.8% in 2012 and 2011 for domestic plans and

2.7% in 2012 and 3.8% in 2011 for foreign plans

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized but

subject to annual impairment tests more frequently if events or circumstances occur that would indicate potential decline in

their fair value The Company performs the assessment annually during the fourth quarter and on an interim basis if potential

impairment indicators arise The Company has identified two reporting units consisting of the CAD and COG segments In

2012 and 2011 all goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles were held by the COG segment

In 2011 the Company determined the fair value of the COG reporting units goodwill using established income and

market valuation approaches The test resulted in fair value of 139% in excess of the reporting units carrying value

including the goodwill Ic 2012 under Accounting Standards Update ASU No 2011-08 Testing Goodwill for

Impairment the Company performed qualitative assessment to determine if further impairment testing was necessary

This qualitative assessment is intended to determine whether it is more likely than not having likelihood of more than

50% that the fair value is less than its
carry amount In making its assessment the Company considered number of factors

such as macro-economic conditions industry and market considerations cost factors segment financial performance entity-

specific events and share price Based upon the above factors it is considered more likely than not having likelihood of

more than 50% that the fair value of the COG reporting unit is more than its carrying value Therefore based on the

qualitative assessment goodwill was not considered impaired as of November 24 2012

The Company determined the fair value of the COG reporting units indefinite-lived intangible assets consisting of two

trade names Costa $3.4 million carrying value and Native $3.5 million carrying value using forward-looking relief

from royalty model The significant assumptions used in the forward-looking relief from royalty method include revenue

growth royalty rates and discount rate The Company performed sensitivity analysis on the significant assumptions and

has determined that change in its assumptions as follows would not impact its conclusion regarding the fair value of the

Costa trade name reduce projected revenue growth rates by 10% reduce projected royalty rate by 5.0% or increase the

discount rate by 100 basis points The Native trade name is more sensitive to changes in the assumptions underlying the

relief from royalty method particularly projected revenue growth rates In order to recover the asset in full five year

average growth rate of 10% needs to be achieved Each 100 basis point reduction in the assumed growth rate would result in

an impairment of approximately $0.1 million The Company has determined that indefinite-lived intangibles were

recoverable as of December 29 2012

Revenue Recognition Revenue recognition requires estimates of product returns discounts and rebates at the time

revenue is recognized These estimates are based on customer communication and historical experience Should these

estimates change there could be material effect on revenue recognized
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For additional information regarding managements estimates see Risk Factors in Item IA of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K and Forward-Looking Statements below

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the

Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The words anticipate believe
continue could estimate expect intend may plan predict project propose should will and

similar terms and phrases are used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to identify forward-looking statements including but

not limited to the performance of Cross branded writing instruments readers and personal accessory products consumers

willingness to continue to participate in the writing instrument category consumers willingness to continue to engage in

Costas prescription sunglass program and to respond favorably to Natives N3 lens technology the planned geographic and

demographic expansion of Costa and Native statements related to the introduction of new products statements related to

sales growth in our CAD business via cross.com and expansion of our licensing efforts the availability of
necessary raw

materials and manufacturing technologies at favorable pricing terms anticipated compliance with laws and regulations

including but not limited to environmental laws and anticipated sufficiency of available working capital These statements

relate to analyses and other information based on forecasts of future results and estimates of amounts not yet determinable

These statements also relate to our future prospects developments and business strategies

These forward-looking statements are made based on managements expectations and beliefs concerning future events

affecting the Company and are subject to uncertainties and factors relating to the Companys operations and business

environment all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control These uncertainties and factors

could cause our actual results to differ materially from those matters expressed in or implied by these forward-looking

statements For discussion of risks and uncertainties associated with these forward-looking statements see Risk Factors

in Item lA of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date the statements are made You should not put undue reliance on

any forward-looking statements The Company assumes no obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect actual

results changes in assumptions or changes in other factors affecting forward-looking information except to the extent

required by applicable securities laws If the Company does update one or more forward-looking statements no inference

should be drawn that we will make additional updates with respect to those or other forward-looking statements Additional

information concerning these and other risks and uncertainties is contained in our other periodic filings with the SEC

Item 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Current economic conditions and market disruptions may adversely affect the Companys business and results of

operations Financial markets throughout the world have been experiencing extreme disruption in recent months including

among other things volatility in security prices diminished liquidity and credit availability rating downgrades and declining

valuations of certain investments failure and potential failures of major financial institutions and unprecedented government

support of financial institutions These developments and the related general economic downturn may adversely impact the

Companys business and financial condition in number of ways including impacts beyond those typically associated with

other recent downturns in the U.S and foreign economies The current tightening of credit in financial markets and the

general economic downturn may adversely affect the ability of Cross customers suppliers and channel partners e.g
distributors to obtain financing for purchases and operations The tightening could result in decrease in demand for the

Companys products negatively impact Cross ability to collect its accounts receivable on timely basis result in additional

reserves for uncollectible accounts receivable being required and in the event of contraction in Cross sales could require

additional reserves for inventory obsolescence

Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuations in those rates may affect the Companys ability to realize projected

growth rates in its sales and earnings The Company derives approximately 38% of its revenues from outside the United

States The Companys ability to realize projected growth rates in sales and earnings could be adversely affected if the U.S
dollar strengthens significantly against foreign currencies The Companys foreign exchange exposure is generated primarily

from its international operating subsidiaries The Company seeks to minimize the impact of foreign currency fluctuations by

hedging certain foreign currency denominated balance sheet positions with foreign currency forward exchange contracts

Most of these contracts are short-term generally expire in one to three months and 5% change in exchange rates would not

subject the Company to material market risk Although the Company has programs in place to manage foreign currency

exchange risk on certain foreign currency denominated balance sheet positions and on portion of certain foreign currency

denominated cash flows significant volatility and fluctuations in the rates of exchange for the U.S dollar against currencies

such as the Euro the British Pound the Chinese Renminbi and the Japanese Yen could adversely affect the Companys
financial position and results of operations
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The Company maintains $40 million secured line of credit with bank Under this agreement the Company has the

option to borrow at various interest rates depending upon the type of borrowings made and the Companys consolidated

leverage ratio The Company believes that changes in interest rates would not be material to its operations due to its

anticipated level of borrowings There was $15.0 million and $21.2 million outstanding under the Companys line of credit at

December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 respectively

The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements that effectively fix the interest rate on portion of its line of

credit at 1.2% per annum At December 29 2012 the notional value of the interest rate swap was $15.0 million
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

A.T Cross Company

Lincoln Rhode Island

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of A.T Cross Company and subsidiaries the

Company as of December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 and the related consolidated statements of income

comprehensive income changes in shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 29 2012 These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit also includes examining on test basis evidence supporting

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide

reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial position of the

Company as of December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the

three years in the period ended December 29 2012 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 29 2012 based on the criteria established in

Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

and our report dated March 13 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on the Companys internal control over financial

reporting

QJo 7At LiP

DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Boston Massachusetts

March 13 2013
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
A.T CROSS COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS AND SHARES
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Accounts receivable net

Inventories

Deferred income taxes

Other current assets

Property Plant and Equpment Net

Goodwill

Intangibles Net

Deferred Income Taxes

Other Assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Line of credit

Accounts payable

Accrued compensation and related taxes

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Retirement plan ob1igaions

Income taxes payable

Long-Term Debt

Retirement Plan Obligations

Deferred Gain on Sale of Real Estate

Other Long-Term Liabililies

Accrued Warranty Costs

Commitments and Contingencies Note

Shareholders Equity

Common stock par vallue $1 per
share

Class authorized 40000 shares 19177 shares issued and

11163 shares outstanding at December 29 2012 and 18713

shares issued and 133 shares outstanding at December 31 2011

Class authorized 4000 shares 1805 shares issued and

outstanding at December 29 2012 and December 31 2011

Additional paid-in capktal

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Treasury stock at cost 8014 shares in 2012 and 7580 shares in 2011

Total ShareholdersEquity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

27120

227

32877

38020

3417

14376

15279

8606

11570

1775

161339

15000

14489

8132

11910

2731

567

52829

19808

1695

662

1267

DECEMBER31 2011

25991

29110

36482

4206

7954

103743

13706

15279

9002

11115

2570

155415

8237

7509

10868

2508

________
712

29834

21221

22636

2216

464

1391

155415

See notes to consolidated financial statements

DECEMBER 29 2012

8072

Total Current Assets 109733

TotalAssets

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities 76261 77762

19177 18713

1805

32309

100666

19852

49027
85078

1805

29178

91518

18718

77653

161339
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
A.T CROSS COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS AND SHARES

EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Gross Profit

Selling general and administrative expenses

Service and distribution costs

Research and development expenses

Interest income

Interest expense

Other expense

Income tax provision

Net Income Per Share

Operating Income

Interest and Other Expense

Income Before Income Taxes

Net Income

Basic

Diluted

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding

Denominator for Basic Net Income Per Share

Effect of dilutive securities

Denominator for Diluted Net Income Per Share

DECEMBER 29 2012

180508

81198

99310

75154

8174

2708

13274

16

525

515

12759

3611

9148

51h74

7fl

12335

714

13049

YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 312011

174637

77613

97024

74451

7830

2697

12046

12

661
248
897

11149

2839

8310

$Qg

12195

810

13005

JANUARY 12011

158312

70090

88222

68817

7524

2811

9070

25

975
270

1220

7850

1642

6208

49
0Ag

12686

379

13065

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A.T CROSS COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS

Net Income

Other Comprehensive Income Loss
Foreign currency translation adjustments

Unrealized gain on interest rate swap net of tax

provision of $29 $5 and $125
Pension liability adjustment net of tax benefit of

$637 $3193 and $877

Comprehensive Income

DECEMBER 29 2012

9148

53

1187
8014

YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER31 2011

8310

143

5925
2251

JANUARY 2011

6208

302

232

1591
4547

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

A.T CROSS COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES

See notes to consolidated financial statements

13

725
1037

94
70

302

1591
232

143

5925

76
70

19

153

1077

939

302
1591

232

6208

74559

1619

1330

329

143
5925

725

18

32

15

121

1077

939

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS AND SHARES COMMON STOCK

SHARES OTHER TOTAL

DOLLAR AMOUNT ADDITIONAL COMPRE- TREASURY SHARE-

AT $1 PAR VALUE PAID-IN RETAINED HENSIVE STOCK HOLDERS

CLASS CLASS CAPITAL EARNINGS LOSS SHARES AMOUNT EQUITY

Balances at January 2010 17660 1805 23574 77000 10998 5806 353325 73709

Purchase of treasury stock 43 267 267

Purchase of treasury stock from related party 1371 5612 5612

Grant of restricted stock for future services

Cancellation of restricted stock

Stock option activity net of settlements

Tax provision on stock-based awards

Stock purchase plan

Non-cash stock-based direcLors fees

Amortization of stock-based compensation

Stock option expense

Foreign currency
translation adjustments

Pension liability adjustment

Unrealized gain on interest rate swap

Net Income

Balances at January 2011

Purchase of treasury stock

Grant of restricted stock for future services

Cancellation of restricted stock

Stock option activity net of settlements

Tax provision on stock-based awards

Stock purchase plan

Non-cash stock-based directors fees

Stock awards

Amortization of stock-based compensation

Stock option expense

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Pension liability adjustment

Unrealized gain on interest rate swap

Net Income

Balances at December 31 201

Purchase of treasury stock

Grant of restricted stock for future services

Cancellation of restricted stock

Stock option activity net of settlements

Tax provision on stock-basd awards

Stock purchase plan

Non-cash stock-based directors fees 162

Amortization of stock-based compensation 2138

Stock option expense
118

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Pension liability adjustment

Unrealized gain on interest rate swap

Net Income

Balances at December 29 2012

104 1037

_______________________________
6208

518439 1805 26014 83208 12659 7324 42248$
158 1619

154 154
976 98 976

98 375
830

16

137

75

1330

329

8310 8310

18713 1805 29178 91518 18718 7580 44843$ 77653

400 4022 4022

344 344
162 34 162

100

18

1187
53

9.148

277
830

17

150

83

221

653

21

321

653

23

180

2138

118

19177 1805 32309 100666 19852 8014 49027$ 85078

1187
53

9148
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
A.T CROSS COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS
CASH PROVIDED BY USED IN
Operating Activities

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation

Amortization

Restructuring charges paid

Amortization of deferred gain

Provision for bad debts

Deferred income taxes

Stock-based compensation and directors fees

Excess tax benefit provision from stock-based awards

Unrealized gain on short-term investments

Unrealized gain loss on foreign exchange contracts

Unrealized foreign currency transaction gain loss

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Other assets

Accounts payable

Other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Investing Activities

Purchases of short-term investments

Sales of short-term investments

Additions to property plant and equipment

Additions to trademarks and patents

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Financing Activities

Excess tax benefit provision from stock-based awards

Borrowing on line of credit

Repayment of line of credit

Proceeds from sale of ClassA common stock

Repurchase of share-based awards to satisfy tax withholdings

Purchase of treasury stock

Purchase of treasury stock from related party

Net Cash Used in Provided by Financing Activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

44279

44061

5635
339

6192

653

3000

9221
463

119
4022

9246
378

1129

25991

27120

YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 31 2011

5780
438

1317

3077

12796

31525 17040
34039 21772

3912 4533
283 286

1681 87

830 70
16300 5860

14300 6360
170 18

430 76
1619 267

5612
951 6507

226
9341 6207

16650 10443

25991 16650

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Income taxes paid refunded net

Interest paid

See notes to consolidated financial statements

DECEMBER 29 2012

8310

5280

JANUARY 12011

6208

5404

739 1211

9148

4982
735

521
206

1326

2436

653

100
403

3635
1475

946

6813

2439
16945

771
522

139

501

2170

70

29
154

84

521
68

2989

1892

830

24
227

728

1864
2712

497

4028
10297

1702 1159 609
491 701 974
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A.T CROSS COMPANY SUBSIDIARIES

December 29 2012

NOTE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Nature of Operations The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of A.T

Cross Company and its subsidiaries the Company Upon consolidation intercompany accounts and transactions are

eliminated

The Company has two reportable segments Cross Accessory Division CAD and Cross Optical Group COG
The Companys CAD segment designs manufactures and markets writing instruments throughout the world and is an OEM
of writing instruments Writing instrument products are sold under the Cross brand as well as the FranklinCovey brand

They include ball-point pens fountain pens Selectip rolling ball pens mechanical pencils and writing instrument accessories

such as refills and desk sets Also under the Cross brand CAD offers variety of personal and business accessories

including leather goods reading glasses desk sets and stationery The Company has license agreements with third party to

develop and sell Cross watches and cufflinks The Companys COG segment designs manufactures and markets sunglasses

throughout the United States under the Costa and Native brand names The Company evaluates segment performance based

upon operating profit or loss The Companys reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different product

lines They are managed separately as each unit requires different technologies and marketing strategies

The Company operates on 52/53 week fiscal year ending on the last Saturday closest to December 31 fiscal year

usually consists of four 13 week fiscal quarters Fiscal 2008 was 53 week year with 14 weeks in the fourth quarter Fiscal

years 2012 2011 2010 and 2009 were 52-week
years

ended December 29 2012 December 31 2011 January 12011 and

January 2010 respectively The Company has historically recorded its highest sales in the fourth quarter

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before the financial statements

are issued to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require additional disclosure

Subsequent events have been evaluated to the date of issuance of these financial statements

The accounting policies of the Company are described in this summary of significant accounting policies

Accounting for Estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America GAAP requires the Company to make assumptions that affect the estimates

reported in these consolidated financial statements Actual results may differ from these estimates The significant estimates

in the Companys consolidated financial statements include sales returns and allowances allowance for doubtful accounts

receivable realizable value of inventory impairment of long-lived assets and goodwill warranty retirement obligations and

income taxes

Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments The Company considers all highly liquid investments with

maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents Short-term investments are stated at fair value

Gains or losses on short-term investments both realized and unrealized are included in other expense income At

December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 approximately 31% and 40% respectively of the Companys cash and cash

equivalents were on deposit with one financial institution

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts The Company determines its allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical

percentages of aged accounts receivable and specific customer accounts when in managements opinion they are deemed

uncollectable Following is summary of the allowance for doubtful accounts for the three years ended December 29 2012

YEARS ENDED

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS DECEMBER 29 2012 DECEMBER 31 2011 JANUARY 12011

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Beginning of Year 1020 1069 1129

Credited charged to bad debt expense 206 68 139

181 117 199Deductions

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts End of Year 633 1020

method

1069

Inventories The Companys inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined using the FIFO
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Property Plant and Equipment and Related Depreciation Property plant and equipment are stated at historical

cost Depreciation expense was $5.0 million $5.3 million and $5.4 million in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Provisions for depreciation are computed using combination of accelerated and straight-line methods which are intended to

depreciate the cost of such assets over their estimated useful lives which are as follows

Leasehold Improvements to 15
years

Machinery Equipment to 10 years

Furniture Fixtures to 10 years

Vehicles Tooling and Desktop PCs to years

The components of Property Plant and Equipment are as follows

YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 29 2012

2106

110795

112901

98525

DECEMBER 312011

2060

105873

107933

94227

14376 13706Property Plant and Equipment Net
______ _____________________

Long-Lived Assets The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable Recoverability of assets to be held and

used is measured by comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated

by the asset If such assets are considered to be impaired the impairment recognized is measured by the amount by which

the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the

carrying amount or fair value less the cost to sell

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill and certain intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortized

but are subject to annual impairment tests more frequently if events or circumstances occur that would indicate potential

decline in their fair value The Company has identified two reporting units consisting of the CAD and COG segments The

Company performs the assessment annually during the fourth quarter and on an interim basis if potential impairment

indicators arise The Company determines the fair value of the reporting units using accepted accounting standard

methodologies and the values of certain intangible assets with indefinite lives consisting of two COG segment trade names

using forward-looking relief from royalty model

Warranty Costs CADs Cross-branded writing instruments are sold with full warranty of unlimited duration against

mechanical failure CADs accessories are sold with one-year warranty against mechanical failure and defects in

workmanship and timepieces are warranted for period of two years Costa and Native sunglasses are sold with lifetime

warranty against defects in materials and workmanship Estimated warranty costs are accrued at the time of sale The most

significant factors in the estimation of warranty cost liabilities include the operating efficiency and related cost of the service

department unit sales and the number of units that are eventually returned for warranty repair The current portions of

accrued warranty costs were $0.4 million at December 29 2012 and $0.5 million at December 31 2011 and were recorded in

accrued expenses and other liabilities The following chart reflects the activity in aggregate accrued warranty costs

YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 29 2012 DECEMBER 31 2011 JANUARY 12011

1892 1998 1936

274 391 735
376 423 423

282 138 374

1712 1892 1998

Revenue Recognition Revenue from sales is recognized when the following criteria are met persuasive evidence of an

arrangement exists title to the goods has passed to the customer the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection of the

sales price is reasonably assured Provisions are made at the time the related revenue is recognized for estimated product

returns discounts and rebates

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS
Leasehold improvements

Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS
Accrued Warranty Costs Beginning of Year

Warranty costs paid

Warranty costs accrued

Impact of changes in estimates and assumptions

Accrued Warranty Costs End of Year
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Marketing Support Costs The costs of marketing support including advertising are charged to expense as incurred

and amounted to approximately $13.8 million $13.7 million and $12.3 million for fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Accrued marketing support expenses were approximately $2.5 million at December 29 2012 and $2.3 million at December

31 2011 and are included in accrued expenses and other liabilities

Derivatives The Company has program in place to manage foreign currency risk As part of that program the

Company can enter into foreign currency exchange contracts to hedge anticipated foreign currency transactions or

commitments primarily purchases of materials and products from foreign suppliers and certain foreign currency

denominated balance sheet positions The terms of the contracts are generally less than three months Forward exchange

contracts generally do not qualify for hedge accounting and gains and losses are included in SGA expenses

The Company also uses interest rate swaps to manage its
exposure to changing interest rates that result from variable rate

debt These swaps effectively fix the interest rate on portion of the Companys line of credit at 1.2%

Realized and unrealized gains and losses on contracts intended to hedge specific forecasted transactions or commitments

if any that are designated and qualify for hedge accounting are deferred and recorded as component of accumulated other

comprehensive loss and accounted for as part of the transaction Contracts are recorded at fair value on the balance sheet as

component of other current assets or accrued expenses
and other liabilities

Stock-Based Compensation The Company recognizes stock-based employment compensation arrangements based on

the estimated fair value of stock-based awards exchanged for employee services received and recognizes compensation cost

based on the fair value of the award on the date of grant recognized ratably over the requisite service period for awards

expected to vest The service period is the period over which the employee performs the related services which is normally

the same as the vesting period

Income Taxes Provisions for Federal state and non-U.S income taxes are calculated on reported income before

income taxes based on current tax law and also include in the current period the cumulative effect of any changes in tax

rates from those used previously in determining deferred tax assets and liabilities Such provisions differ from the amounts

currently receivable or payable because certain items of income and expense are recognized in different time periods for

financial reporting purposes
than for income tax purposes Significant judgment is required in determining income tax

provisions and evaluating tax positions

The Company records liability associated with an uncertain income tax benefit for position taken or intended to be

taken if we determine that it is not more likely than not that such benefit will be sustained upon review of the taxing

authority The Company also records tax position as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of

being realized upon ultimate settlement

Basic and Diluted Net Income Per Share Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the

weighted average number of total shares of Class and Class common stock outstanding during the year Diluted net

income per share is computed by dividing net income by diluted weighted average shares outstanding Diluted weighted

average shares reflect the dilutive effect if any of potential common shares To the extent that their effect is dilutive

potential common shares include common stock options and non-vested equity shares based on the treasury stock method

There is no anti-dilutive effect of securities for the three years ended December 29 2012

Environmental Contingencies The Company is subject to contingencies pursuant to environmental laws and

regulations under various state Federal and foreign laws including CERCLA The Company typically estimates potential

costs based on information obtained from the U.S Environmental Protection Agency or counterpart state agency and/or

studies prepared by independent consultants including the total estimated costs for the site and the expected cost-sharing if

any with other potentially responsible parties and the Company accrues liabilities when they are probable and estimable

New Accounting Pronouncements In September 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued

an Accounting Standards Update ASU which simplifies how companies test goodwill for impairment The ASU permits

an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit

is less than its carrying amount as basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill

impairment test described in the goodwill accounting standard The amendments are effective for annual and interim

goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 The Company adopted this

pronouncement in 2012 July 2012 the FASB issued an ASU which expanded the scope of this valuation testing

methodology to include all indefinite-lived assets and is effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for

fiscal years beginning after September 15 2012 We do not expect the new ASU to have material effect on our financial

position results of operations or cash flows
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NOTE INVENTORIES

The Companys inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined using the FIFO method The

components of inventory are as follows

YEARS ENDED

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS
Finished goods

Work in process

Raw materials

DECEMBER 29 2012

26182

3512

8326

38020

DECEMBER 312011

23538

3967

8977

36482

THOUSANDS OF

DOLLARS

Amortized

Trademarks

Patents

Customer relationships

Not Amortized

Trade names

Intangibles Net

NOTE RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

In 2008 the Company restructured Cross Accessory Division CAD Lincoln based manufacturing operations in order

to increase its competitiveness in the global marketplace by further leveraging the investment in China manufacturing

operations The Company also closed several underperforming retail stores and reduced headcount at its Lincoln facility

These restructuring programs moved Lincoln manufacturing operations to the Companys China facility and reduced the total

retail store count by four Approximately 50 manufacturing positions and 27 sales and administrative positions in the United

States and four sales and administrative positions in the United Kingdom were affected by these programs In 2009 the

Company expanded its restructuring efforts to further reduce headcount at its Lincoln and European facilities The Company

incurred pre-tax restructuring charges of approximately $4.4 million since the inception of these programs Of this $4.4

million approximately $2.4 million was for severance and related expenses and approximately $2.0 million was for transition

and other costs Restructuring charges paid in fiscal 2010 were $0.8 million No restructuring charges were incurred in fiscal

2010 2011 or 2012

NOTE 0- GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are not amortized but are subject to annual impairment tests more

frequently if events or circumstances occur that would indicate potential decline in their fair value The Company has

identified two reporting units consisting of the CAD and COG segments The Company performs the assessment annually

during the fourth quarter or on an interim basis if potential impairment indicators arise The fair value of the reporting units

goodwill is determined using accepted accounting standard methodologies and the fair value of other indefinite-lived

intangible assets consisting of two COG segment trade names is determined using forward relief from royalty method

In 2012 2011 and 2010 the Companys annual impairment tests indicated that all remaining goodwill and indefinite-

lived intangibles were not impaired The cumulative goodwill impairment loss of $3.9 million related to the CAD segment

At December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 the carrying value of goodwill was approximately $15.3 million The

entire goodwill balance is related to the COG segment and $11.9 million of it the goodwill resulting from the 2008

acquisition of Native is expected to be tax deductible As the goodwill is all U.S Dollar denominated there is no translation

adjustment

Other intangibles consisted of the following

DECEMBER 29 2012 DECEMBER 31 2011

GROSS OTHER GROSS OTHER

CARRYING ACCUMULATED INTANGIBLES CARRYING ACCUMULATED INTANGIBLES

AMOUNT AMORTIZATION NET AMOUNT AMORTIZATION NET

9542 9163 379 9374 8990 384

3642 3334 308 3471 3225 246

3170 2151 1019 3170 1698 1472

16354 14648 1706 16015 13913 2102

6900 6900

8606 9002
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The Company uses the straight-line method to amortize patents and trademarks over an average five-year life and

customer relationships over seven-year life Amortization expense was approximately $0.7 million $0.7 million and $1.2

million for fiscal years 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The estimated future amortization expense for other intangibles

remaining as of December 29 2012 is as follows

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 THEREAFTER

702 646 247 87 24

NOTE LINE OF CREDIT

The Company maintains $40.0 million revolving line of credit with Bank of America N.A the Bank Under the

line of credit agreement the Bank agreed to make loans to the Company in an aggregate amount not to exceed $40.0 million

including up to $10.0 million equivalent in Eurocurrency loans denominated in pounds sterling or Euro Eurocurrency

Loans and up to $30.0 million of other committed loans to the Company Committed Loans at any time As part of the

aggregate availability the Bank may also issue up to $7.5 million in letters of credit Subject to the limits on availability and

the other terms and conditions of this credit agreement amounts may be borrowed repaid and reborrowed without penalty

This credit facility matures on July 28 2013

The interest rate for the Committed Loans will be at the Companys option either the London Interbank Offered Rate

LIBOR plus an applicable margin or ii the higher of the federal funds rate plus 50 basis points or the Banks prime rate

plus an applicable margin The interest rate for any Eurocurrency Loans will be an interest settlement rate for deposits in

pounds sterling or Euro plus an applicable margin The applicable margin for LIBOR and Eurocurrency loans will be an

amount between 1.75% and 2.25% and the applicable margin for federal funds or the Banks prime rate will be an amount

between 0.25% and 0.75% which will vary from time to time based upon the Companys consolidated leverage ratio

Under the line of credit agreement the Company has agreed to comply with certain affirmative and negative covenants

The most restrictive covenant requires the Company to maintain maximum ratio of consolidated funded indebtedness to

consolidated adjusted EBITDA over any four-quarter period The agreement requires the Company to maintain minimum

consolidated tangible net worth computed at each year end maximum level of capital expenditures each of which is

calculated in accordance with the agreement Amounts due under the credit agreement are guaranteed by certain domestic

and foreign subsidiaries of the Company Amounts due are also secured by pledge of the assets of the Company and those

of certain of its domestic subsidiaries

At December 29 2012 the outstanding balance of the Companys line of credit was $15.0 million bearing an interest

rate of approximately 2.0/ and the unused and available portion according to the terms of the agreement was $25.0

million At December 31 2011 the outstanding balance of the Companys line of credit was $21.2 million bearing an

interest rate of approximately 2.0% and the unused and available portion according to the terms of the agreement was $18.8

million

NOTE ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS INCOME ITEMS

CUMULATIVE PENSION ThITEREST RATE

TRANSLATION LIABILITY SWAP

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS ADJUSTMENTS ADJUSTMENT AGREEMENTS

Balances at December 31 2011 2046 16562 110
Current period change 1187 53

Balances at December 29 2012 2046 17749 57

NOTE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

ACCUMULATED
OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE
LOSS

18718

ll
19852

The following table details the United States dollar equivalent of foreign exchange contracts outstanding at December

29 2012 and December 31 2011 along with maturity dates and any unrealized gain loss The net unrealized gain loss is

recorded in SGA in the consolidated statements of income since the Company did not apply hedge accounting to these

contracts
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THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS

DECEMBER 29 2012

Euro

Sterling

Japanese Yen

Hong Kong Dollar

Taiwan Dollar

Mexican Peso

Chinese Renminbi

Singapore Dollar

Canadian Dollar

DECEMBER 31 2011

Euro

Sterling

Japanese Yen

Hong Kong Dollar

Taiwan Dollar

Mexican Peso

Chinese Renminbi

CONTRACT AMOUNT
U.S EQUIVALENT

4475

24

8865

3045

1567

1522

4000

551

501

Total 24550

10642

4657

12006

4569

1526

1020

5000

Total 39420

MATURITY
DATE

2013

2013

2013

2013

2013

2013

2013

2013

2013

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

2012

UNREALIZED GROSS
GAIN LOSS

118

24
208

13
49

100

151

112
16
13
13
32

24

NOTE EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Foreign currency exchange gains losses that are included in SGA expenses approximated $0.3 million $1.7 million

and $1.2 million in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

In the third quarter of 2010 the Company entered into forward interest rate swap agreement with an initial notional

amount of $15.0 million and term of three years This swap effectively fixes the interest rate on portion of the Companys

line of credit at approximately 1.2% The item being hedged is the first interest payment to be made on $15.0 million of

principal expected to occur each month beginning March 31 2011 The Company measures hedge ineffectiveness using the

hypothetical derivative method This swap has been designated cash flow hedge and the effect of the mark-to-market

valuation is recorded as an adjustment net of tax to accumulated other comprehensive loss From inception to December 29

2012 the effect of the mark-to-market valuations net of tax was an unrealized loss of approximately $0.1 million and is

included as component of accumulated other comprehensive loss

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts based on quoted spot exchange rates are reported in other current

assets or accrued expenses and other liabilities The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates the recorded

amounts due to the short period of time to maturity The carrying amount of long-term debt approximates fair value as

result of the variable interest rate The fair value of the interest rate swap agreements based upon market observable data

was $0.1 million at December 29 2012 and $0.2 million at December 31 2011 and was reported in accrued expenses and

other liabilities

The Company has non-contributory defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution retirement plans consisting

of savings plans and non-contributory profit sharing plan which cover substantially all domestic employees

On March 30 2006 the Companys Board of Directors voted to freeze the Companys domestic non-contributory defined

benefit pension plan effective May 20 2006

The Companys matching contributions to its savings plans are made in cash In fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 expenses

related to this plan were approximately $0.7 million $0.8 million and $0.7 million respectively There were no profit

sharing plan contributions during this three-year period The Company also maintains deferred compensation plan that is

offered to certain key executives and non-employee directors Employees of foreign subsidiaries generally receive retirement

benefits from Company sponsored defined benefit or defined contribution plans or from statutory plans administered by

governmental agencies in their countries The Company does not provide its employees with any postretirement benefits

other than those described above

The Companys measurement date for these benefits is the Companys fiscal year
end

Benefits under the defined benefit plans are based on the employees years
of service and compensation as defined

While there is no requirement under any of these plans to invest in the Companys stock the defined contribution retirement
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plan offers the Companys stock as an investment option The Companys funding policy is consistent with applicable local

laws and regulations

The following chart sets forth the defined benefit plans combined funded status and amounts recognized in the

Companys consolidated balance sheet at the end of each fiscal year

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS 2012 2011

Change in Projected BenefIt Obligation

Benefit obligation at end of prior year 59134 50869

Service cost 255 255

Interest cost 2454 2633

Actuarial loss 4927 7842

Benefits paid 2373 2209
Administrative expenses paid 266 256

Benefit Obligation at End of Year 64131 59134

Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year 34892 32928

Actual return on plan assets 4413 632

Employer contributions 5980 3797

Benefits paid 2373 2209
Administrative expenses paid 266 256

Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Year 42646 34892

Funded Status

Deficiency of plan assets over projected benefit obligation 21485 24242

Unrecognized prior service cost 60 71

Unrecognized net actuarial loss 26959 25127

Prepaid Pension Cost Included in Retirement Plan Obligations 5534 956

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets Consist of

Accrued benefit cost current 2253 2068
Accrued benefit cost long-term 19232 22174

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 27019 25198

Net Recognized Amount 5534 956

Accumulated Benefit Obligation 64131 59134

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS 2012 2011 2010

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Service cost 255 255 45

Interest cost 2454 2633 2679

Expected return on plan assets 2825 2622 2465
Amortization of prior service cost 60 27 11

Recognized net actuarial loss 1490 652 379

Net Periodic Benefit Cost 1434 945 649
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2012 2011 2010

DOMESTIC FOREIGN DOMESTIC FOREIGN DOMESTIC FOREIGN

Assumptions PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS

Weighted Average Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Obligation

Discount rate 3.73% 3.30% 4.2 1% 4.70% 5.36% 5.15%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Weighted Average Assumptions Used to Determine Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Discount rate 4.21% 4.70% 5.36% 5.15% 5.88% 5.90%

Expected return on plan assets 7.80% 2.70% 7.80% 3.80% 7.80% 3.50%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

The Company decreased the discount rate on domestic and foreign plans in 2012 to reflect market interest rate

conditions In establishing the long-term rate of return on assets assumption of 7.8% the Company indexed its targeted

allocation percentage by asset category against the long-term expected returns on the frozen domestic plan for those asset

categories That weighted-average return approximates 7.8% The Company monitors investment results against

benchmarks such as the Russell 1000 Growth Index and the Russell 2000 Value Index for the equity portion of the portfolio

and the Barclays Capital US Long Credit Index for fixed income investments Meeting or exceeding those benchmarks

over time would provide reasonable expectation of achieving the 7.8% assumption

Plan Asset Information TARGET ALLOCATION ALLOCATION

ALLOCATION PERCENTAGE PERCENTAGE

Asset Category FYE 2013 FYE 2012 FYE 2011

Domestic Equities 30% 29.7% 32.3%

International Equities 10% 10.5% 7.9%

Fixed Income Securities 40% 40.2% 40.4%

All Asset Fund 20% 19.7% 19.4%

Cash/Other 0% 0.0% 0.0%

100% 100% 100%

The investment objective of the Plan is to exceed the actuarial long-term rate of return on assets assumption of 7.8% To

that end it is the Plans practice to invest the assets in accordance with the targeted allocation established for each asset

category These targeted asset allocation ranges have been established in accordance with the overall risk and return

objectives of the portfolio The Plan employs other risk management practices that stress diversification and liquidity For

equity investments no more than 10% of the equity portfolio can be invested in one issuer and typically no more than 20% of

equity assets can be invested in one industry Shares must be listed on major stock exchanges to assure liquidity Debt

securities are similarly governed by risk management rules No more than 5% of the total portfolio may be invested in one

issuer except the United States government and no one issuer can exceed 5% of the outstanding shares of that issuer

There are also quality ratings associated with debt securities that the Plan managers must adhere to Certain assets or

transactions are prohibited in the management of Plan assets such as commodities real estate except mutual funds or

REITS venture capital private placements purchasing securities on margin and short selling

The Company made cash contributions in 2012 of approximately $5.8 million to its defined benefit pension plans $2.5

million of which was an additional voluntary contribution The Company expects to contribute $2.1 million to its defined

benefit pension plans in 2013

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future service as appropriate are expected to be paid

THOUSANDSOFDOLLARS 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018-2022

2398 2466 2573 2700 2862 16467
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The fair value framework requires the categorization of pension plan assets into three levels based upon the assumptions

inputs used to price the pension plan assets Level provides the most reliable measure of fair value whereas Level

generally requires significant management judgment The three levels are defined as follows

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets

Level Observable inputs other than those included in Level For example quoted prices for similar assets in active

markets or quotd prices for identical assets in inactive markets

Level Unobservable inputs reflecting managements own assumptions about the inputs used in pricing the asset

The fair values of our financial assets are categorized as follows

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS DECEMBER 29 2012 DECEMBER 31 2011

LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL TOTAL LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL TOTAL

Assets
_______ ______

Domestic Equities 11539 11539 10579 10579

International Equities 4014 4014 2264 2264

Fixed Income Securities 14018 14018 11158 11158

Foreign Fixed Income Securities 5858 5858 2932 2932

All Asset Fund 5904 5904 4272 4272

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1313 1313 3687 3687

Total Assets at Fair Value 36788 5858 42646 31960 2932 34892

Value based on quoted market prices of identical instruments

Includes approximately $0.6 million and $0.6 million of A.T Cross Company Class common stock in 2012 and

2011 respectively

Valued daily by the lund using market approach with inputs that include quoted market prices of identical instruments

to the underlying investments

NOTE OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN THE PLAN

The Companys 01 Plan permits the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company to grant various

long-term incentive awards generally equity based to officers and key employees from one pool of reserved shares The 01

Plan provides for grants of awards including but not limited to Non-Qualified Stock Options at an exercise price determined

by the Compensation Committee Stock Appreciation Rights which are rights to receive an amount equal to the increase

between the date of grant and the date of exercise in the fair market value of the number of shares of common stock subject

to the Stock Appreciation Right Non-Vested Equity Shares which are common shares that have certain conditions attached

to them that must be satisfied in order to have unencumbered rights to them and Performance Awards which are awards in

common shares or cash The 01 Plan has no definite expiration date but may be terminated by the Board of Directors at any

time At December 29 2012 there were 1646586 shares reserved and 537596 shares available to be issued under the UI

Plan

The fair value of each stock option granted under the Companys 01 Plan was estimated on the date of grant using the

Black-Scholes option-pricing model It should be noted that the option-pricing model used was designed to value readily

tradable stock options with relatively short lives The options granted to employees are not tradable and have contractual

lives of up to ten years un employment is terminated However management believes that the assumptions used and the

model applied to value the awards yield reasonable estimate of the fair value of the grants made under the circumstances

No stock options were granted in 2012 At December 29 2012 the total unamortized
expense

for stock options under the 01

Plan was approximately $0.1 million Otherinformation related to stock options follows

2011 2010

Weighted average fair value per share of stock options granted $4.40 $1.28

Key assumptions used to value stock options granted

Weighted average risk-free rate 2.21% 1.56%

Average expected life in years

Volatility 44.97% 43.32%

Dividend yield 0% 0%
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DECEMBER 29 2012 DECEMBER 31 2011

Stock price used to determine intrinsic values at end of year $10.69 $11.31

MILLIONS OF DOLLARS
Intrinsic value of stock options outstanding at end of year $7.0 $8.6

Intrinsic value of stock optiOns exercisable at end of year $7.0 $8.5

Intrinsic value of stock options exercised $0.8 $1.4

The fair value of non-vested equity shares granted under the Companys 01 Plan was determined on the date of grant At

December 29 2012 the total unrecognized compensation expense for Non-Vested Equity Shares under the 01 Plan was

approximately $4.7 million with weighted-average life of 1.9 years Other information related to non-vested equity shares

follows

MILLIONS OF DOLLARS 2012 2011 2010

Fair value of shares vested at vesting dates $2.2 $1.8 $1.4

Compensation expense recognized $2.1 $1.3 $1.1

Director Retainers are shares of Company stock issued to Directors for services performed for the Company they vest

upon issuance The expense related to Director Retainer shares for 2012 2011 and 2010 was $0.2 million $0.1 million and

$0.2 million respectively

The related tax benefit provision on compensation expense recognized under the 01 Plan was $0.7 million $0.8 million

and $0.1 million in fiscal 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

Stock plan activity during the year ended December 29 2012 was as follows

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES

SHARES EXERCISE PRICE RESERVED

Shares reserved at December 31 2011 2141621

Stock Options

Outstanding at December 31 2011 1278241 $4.62

Exercised 167501 $6.16 167501

Cancelled 1750 $7.11

Outstanding at December 29 2012 1108990 $4.38

WEIGHTED AVERAGE GRANT
DATE FAIR VALUE

Non-Vested Equity Shares

Outstanding at December 31 2011 704920 $6.00

Granted 343800 $9.62 343800

Vested 224485 $4.71

Cancelled 34166 $4.74 34166

Outstanding at December 29 2012 790069 $9.07

Director Retainers 17900 $10.05 17900

Shares reserved at December 29 2012 1646586

The Company also has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan the ESP Plan allowing eligible employees other than officers

and directors to purchase shares of the Companys Class common stock at 10% less than the mean between the high and

low prices of the stock on the date of purchase maximum of 320000 shares is available under the ESP Plan and the

aggregate numbers of shares reserved and available for purchase under the ESP Plan were 74236 76610 and 78134 at

December 29 2012 December 31 2011 and January 2011 respectively
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NOTE INCOME TAXES

The components of income before income taxes were

102 1185 1233

145 179 214

_____ 921 1094

85 2541

1085

1042

2690 2939 797
10

The reconciliation of income taxes computed at the statutory Federal income tax rate to the provision for income taxes

from operations is as follows

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS

Statutory Federal income 1ax provision

State income tax expense less Federal tax benefit

Foreign tax rate differential

Adjustment related to uncertain tax benefits

Miscellaneous

Income Tax Provision

2011
_______

3902

234

1023 1001
16 223

258 ____________1

2839 1642

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities at December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 are as follows

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS
Current Deferred Tax Assets

Additional costs inventoried for tax purposes and

inventory adjustments not deductible for tax purposes

Excess benefit plan

Accrued pension costs

Net operating loss carryforward

Other

Less Valuation Allowance

Current Deferred Tax Assets

2012

725

1067

769

1543

4104

687
3417

2011

1077

1005

689

1315

1548

5634

14
4206

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS 2012 2011 2010

U.S 7592 5610 2156

Non-U.S 5167 5539 5694

12759 11149 7850

The provision for income taxes consists of the following

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS 2012 2011 2010

Currently Payable Receivable

Federal

State

Foreign

Deferred

Federal

State

Foreign 130
2569 2924 899

Total 3611 2839 1642

2012

4465

79

1034
193

92
3611

2010

2747

134
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THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS

Long-Term Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

Assets

Intangible assets

Accrued warranty costs

Foreign tax credit carryforward

Net operating loss carryforward

Accrued pension costs

Deferred gain on sale of real estate

Other

Less Valuation Allowance

Liabilities

Long-Term Deferred Tax Assets

Property plant and equipment principally due to

differences in depreciation

Intangible assets

Long-Term Deferred Tax Liabilities

Net Long-Term Deferred Tax Asset

Net Deferred Tax Asset

2012

658

2866

2782

7494

873

1651

16324

3490
12834

1154
110

1264

11570

14987

2011

212

733

1185

3047

7662

1105

1507

15451

3487
11964

849

849
11115

15321

At December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries amounted to

approximately $39.9 million and $35.5 million respectively These earnings could become subject to additional tax if they

are remitted as dividends or if certain other circumstances exist The amount of additional taxes that might be payable on the

undistributed foreign earnings of $39.9 million approximates $9.5 million This amount has not been recorded because it is

the Companys intention to permanently invest the remainder of the undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries in the

growth of business outside the United States

At December 29 2012 the Company had state net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $23.6 million which

expire in fiscal
years

from 2013 to 2031 Net operating loss carryforwards for certain foreign subsidiaries were

approximately $3.8 million for tax purposes portion of these losses will expire in fiscal years from 2013 to 2025 and

portion does not expire valuation allowance has been provided for the foreign and state net operating losses and

temporary differences that are estimated to expire before they are utilized The decrease of $0.8 million in 2012 and the

increase of $0.3 million in 2011 in the valuation allowance primarily related to changes in state deferred tax assets

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences between the tax and financial statement recognition of revenue

and expense In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred tax assets within the jurisdiction from which they arise we

consider all available positive and negative evidence including reversals of deferred tax liabilities projected future taxable

income tax planning strategies and recent financial operations It is managements assertion based on the evaluation of this

evidence that it is more likely than not that sufficient future taxable income will be generated to realize the tax benefit of the

deferred tax assets net of the valuation allowance

As of December 29 2012 the liability for uncertain tax positions is $0.5 million and $0.4 million of the unrecognized

tax benefit would impact the Companys effective tax rate if recognized

The following is tabular reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of unrecognized tax benefits

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS

Beginning of Year

Gross increases current period tax positions

2012

361

199

11
549

The Company is currently subject to audit by the Internal Revenue Service IRS and certain foreign jurisdictions for

the calendar years ended 2009 through 2012 In certain foreign jurisdictions the Company is currently subject to audit for

tax years prior to 2009 this varies depending on the jurisdiction The Company and its subsidiaries state income tax returns

are subject to audit for the calendar years ended 2008 through 2012

As of December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 the Company had accrued $0.1 million of interest and an immaterial

amount of penalties related to uncertain tax positions The Company accounts for interest and penalties related to uncertain

tax positions as part of its provision for income taxes The liabilities recorded under the accounting standard related to

Lapse of statute limitations

End of Year

2011

376

31
361

2010

586

92

302
376
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uncertain tax positions including tax interest and penalty are included in other long-term liabilities on the Companys

consolidated balance sheet

The Company is subject to income taxes in many jurisdictions around the world Significant judgment is required in

determining the worldwide provision for income taxes In the ordinary course of business there are many transactions and

calculations in which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain Although the Company believes the estimates for uncertain

tax positions are reasonable and recorded in accordance with accounting standards the final determination of tax audits and

any related litigation could be materially different than that which is reflected in historical income tax provisions and

accruals Additional taxes assessed as result of an audit or litigation could have material effect on the Companys income

tax provision and net income in the period or periods in which the determination is made Changes in estimates made in

fiscal 2012 and 2011 were the result of more precise information current actions by taxing authorities and the expiration of

statutes of limitation in certain jurisdictions

NOTE SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following chart sets forth segment information for the Company for the three fiscal years ended December 29 2012

CROSS ACCESSORY CROSS OPTICAL

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS DIVISION GROUP TOTAL

2012

Revenues from external customers 97222 83286 180508

Depreciation and amorlization 4118 1599 5717

Operating loss income 171 13445 13274

Segment assets 101909 59430 161339

Goodwill 15279 15279

Expenditures for long-lived assets 3722 2252 5974

2011

Revenues from external customers 102131 72506 174637

Depreciation and amortization 4564 1455 6019

Operating income 1205 10841 12046

Segment assets 104761 50654 155415

Goodwill 15279 15279

Expenditures for long-lived assets 25 10 1685 4195

2010

Revenues from external customers 97776 60536 158312

Depreciation and amortization 4780 1835 6615

Operating income 817 8253 9070

Segment assets 98566 48154 146720

Goodwill 15279 15279

Expenditures for long-lived assets 3734 1085 4819

Total Company and segment operating income loss reconciles to consolidated income before income taxes by the

inclusion of interest income interest expense and other income

The Company defines long-lived assets as property plant and equipment and intangibles

Geographic Information

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS 2012 2011 2010

NET SALES

United States 112658 101410 90322

Europe Middle East and Africa 29246 36230 34631

Asia Pacific 25117 24187 22438

International Americas 13487 12810 10921

Total Consolidated Net Sales 180508 174637 158312

Revenues are attributed to countries based on the location of customers
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LONG-LIVED ASSETS 2012 2011 2010

United States 32110 30878 31786

Foreign countries 6151 7109 8033

Total Consolidated Long-LivedAssets 38261 37987 39819

NOTE COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company leases administrative facilities and/or manufacturing and warehouse space for its CAD segment operations

in Rhode Island U.S the United Kingdom France Japan Hong Kong Taiwan Singapore and China The CAD segment

also leases retail facility in the United Kingdom The Companys COG segment leases administrative and warehouse

facilities in Florida and Colorado All leases expire prior to the end of 2026 Real estate taxes insurance and maintenance

expenses are generally obligations of the Company It is expected that in the ordinary course of business leases that expire

will be renewed or replaced by leases on other properties thus it is anticipated that future minimum lease commitments will

not be less than the amounts shown for 2013 Rent expense for leased facilities was approximately $3.9 million $3.5 million

and $3.5 million in 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively At December 29 2012 future minimum lease payments under all

such non-cancelable leases including renewal options the Company believes it will exercise were approximately

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total

3758 3102 2874 2605 1603 13337 27279

The Company was named as one of approximately ninety defendants in contribution suit brought by CCL/Unilever

relating to the J.M Mills Landfill Site the Site which is part of the PetersonlPuritan Superfund Site in Cumberland

Rhode Island These complaints alleged that the Company was liable under the Comprehensive Environmental Response

Compensation and Liability Act CERCLA for contribution for Site investigation costs The Company has reached

settlement of the case and paid settlement amount of approximately $0.2 million in 2010

The Company expects that the Federal Environmental Protection Agency EPA will select remedy for the Site in

2013 At that time the EPA will initiate an administrative process the Special Notice Process pursuant to CERCLA

whereby the EPA will request that those entities that the EPA contends arranged for the disposal of hazardous materials at the

Site the PRPs undertake the selected remedy at the Site The EPA contends that the Company is PRP at the Site During

the Special Notice Process the Company and the other PRPs will engage in negotiations with the EPA regarding the remedy

and among themselves regarding the contribution of each PRP to overall remediation costs Neither the cost of the remedy

nor the identity of all PRPs is known at this time Therefore it is not possible to assess the outcome of the Special Notice

Process as it may relate to the Companys contribution to remediation costs

The Company is involved in various other litigation and legal matters that have arisen in the ordinary course of business

To its knowledge management believes that the ultimate resolution of any of those existing matters will not have material

adverse effect on the Companys consolidated financial position or results of operations

NOTE COMMON STOCK

Holders of Class common stock have the right to elect one-third of the number of directors from time to time fixed by

the holders of Class and Class common stock voting together as single class Holders of Class common stock have

the right to elect the remaining directors Class and Class common stock vote together as single class to reserve shares

to be issued pursuant to options granted with respect to the acquisition of assets or shares of another company under certain

circumstances Except as described above or as otherwise required by law all voting power is vested in the holders of Class

common stock

NOTE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value framework requires the categorization of assets and liabilities into three levels based upon the assumptions

inputs used to price the assets or liabilities Level provides the most reliable measure of fair value whereas Level

generally requires significant management judgment The three levels are defined as follows
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Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level Observable inputs other than those included in Level For example quoted prices for similar assets or

liabilities in active markets or quoted prices for identical assets in inactive markets

Level Unobservable inputs reflecting managements own assumptions about the inputs used in pricing the asset or

liability

The fair values of our financial assets and liabilities are categorized as follows

THOUSANDS OF DOLLAftS DECEMBER 29 2012 DECEMBER 31 2011

LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL TOTAL LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL TOTAL

___ ___
Assets

257 257 ______
55

_____
55

932 257 1189 10404 55 10459

157 157 31
_____

31

244 244 200 200

Value is based on quoted market prices of identical instruments fair value is included in cash and cash equivalents

Value is based on quoted market prices of identical instruments

Value is based on the present value of the forward rates less the contract rate multiplied by the notional amount fair

value is included in other current assets or accounts payable accrued
expenses

and other liabilities

Value is derived from discounted cash flow analysis based on the terms of the contract and the interest rate curve fair

value is included in accounts payable accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value which approximates fair value Accounts payable included in

accounts payable accrued
expenses

and other current liabilities are recorded at historical cost which approximates fair value

due to the short-term nature of the liabilities Long-term debt is recorded at historical cost which approximates fair value

due to the variable interesi rate

The effective portion of the pre-tax gains losses on our derivative instruments are categorized in the following table

THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS YEARS ENDED

DECEMBER 29 2012 DECEMBER 31 2011

Fair Value Non-designated Hedges

Foreign exchange contracts

Cash Flow Hedges

Effective portion recognized in other comprehensive income

Interest rate swaps

Effective portion reclassified from other comprehensive income

Included in selling general and administrative expenses

705 705 10404 10404

227 227

Money market funds

Short-term investments

Derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments

Foreign exchange contracts

Liabilities

Derivatives designated as

hedging instruments

Interest rate swaps

Derivatives not designated as

hedging instruments

Foreign exchange contracts

-$ 87$ -$ 87$ -$ 169$ 169

Interest rate swaps

Included in interest expense

100

228

147

24

253

239
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NOTE 0- SHORT-TERM IN VESTMENTS

At December 29 2012 the Company had short-term equity investments with value of $0.2 million classified as trading

securities Realized and unrealized gains or losses on short-term investments are included in other expense income The

net unrealized gain loss on short-term investments held on December 29 2012 was not material

NOTE RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Stock Redemption Agreement with Galal Doss director and major stockholder of the Company at that

time the Company purchased approximately 1.4 million shares of the Companys Class common stock in 2010 for

approximately $5.6 million

NOTE QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS UNAUDITED

The following is tabulation of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 29 2012 and

December3l2011

THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA
2012 MARCH 31 JUNE 30 SEPTEMBER 29 DECEMBER 29

Net Sales 41946 48807 43396 46359

Gross Profit 23570 27814 23147 24779

Net Income 1538 3661 2039 1910

Net Income Per Share Basic $u1J3

Diluted $fLi2

Weighted Average Shares

Denominatorfor Basic Net Income Per Share 12288 12397 12729 12612

Effect of Dilutive Securities

Common stock equivalents 605 580 597 711

Denominator for Diluted Net Income Per Share 12893 12977 13326 13323

2011 APRIL JULY OCTOBER DECEMBER31

Net Sales 39782 47768 43809 43278

Gross Profit 23165 27397 23509 22953

Net Income 1265 3159 1945 1941

Net Income Per Share Basic

Diluted

Weighted Average Shares

Denominator for Basic Net Income Per Share 12113 12191 12244 12229

Effect of Dilutive Securities

Common stock equivalents 778 810 796 797

Denominator for Diluted Net Income Per Share 12891 13001 13040 13026
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Item CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

Item 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and procedures designed to ensure that material information relating to us

including our consolidated subsidiaries is made known to the officers who certify our financial reports and to other members

of senior management and the Board of Directors

Our management with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer evaluated the

effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and 15d-

15e under the Exchange Act as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K Based on this

evaluation our principal eecutive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and

procedures were effective as of December 29 2012

Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as

such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f Our management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our

internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway commission Based on this evaluation under the framework in

Internal control Integrated Framework our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was

effective as of December 29 2012

Our internal control over financial reporting as of December 29 2012 has been audited by Deloitte Touche LLP an

independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is included herein

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2012

that have materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B OTHER INFORMATION

one
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

A.T Cross Company

Lincoln Rhode Island

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of A.T Cross Company and subsidiaries the Company
as of December 29 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission The Companys management is responsible for maintaining

effective internal control over financial reporting and for their assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over

financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective

internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an

understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our

opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is
process designed by or under the supervision of the

companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and effected by the

companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions

of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of collusion or

improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on

timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to

future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the

degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 29 2012 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year
ended December 29 2012 and our report

dated March 13 2013 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements

LLP

DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Boston Massachusetts

March 13 2013
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PART III

Item 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

See Election of Directors Corporate Governance Committees of the Board of Directors and Section 16a
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance in the registrants definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of

shareholders which sections are incorporated by reference herein See also the Executive Officers of the Company section

of Business in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

We have Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to all of our employees including our chief executive

officer and senior financial and accounting officers which meets the requirements of code of ethics as defined in Item

406 of Regulation S-K Tire text of our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct is posted in the Investor Relations section of

our website www.cross.com Disclosure regarding any amendments to or waivers from provisions of our code of ethics

and business conduct that apply to our chief executive officer and senior financial and accounting officers will be included in

Current Report on Form 8-K within four business days following the date of the amendment or waiver unless website

posting of such amendments or waivers is permitted by the rules of the NASDAQ Stock Exchange

Item 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

See Executive Compensation Compensation Discussion and Analysis Compensation Committee Report and

Director Compensation in the registrants definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of shareholders which

section is incorporated by reference herein Such incorporation by reference shall not be deemed to specifically incorporate

by reference the information referred to in Item 402a8 of Regulation S-K

Item 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

See Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management in the registrants definitive proxy statement

for the 2013 annual meeting of shareholders which section is incorporated by reference herein

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table details the Companys equity compensation plans as of December 29 2012

NUMBER OF SECURITIES

REMAINING AVAILABLE FOR

FUTURE ISSUANCE UNDER
NUMBER OF SECURITIES TO BE WEIGHTED AVEARGE EQUITY COMPENSATION

ISSUED UPON EXERCISE OF EXERCISE PRICE OF PLANS EXCLUDING
OUTSTANDING OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS SECURITIES REFLECTED

PLAN CATEGORY WARRANTS AND RIGHTS WARRANTS AND RIGHTS COLUMN

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders 1108990 $4.38 537596

Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders

Total 1108990 $4.38 537596

Item 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

See Election of Directors in the registrants definitive proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting of shareholders

which sections are incorporated by reference herein

Item 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

See Appointment of Independent Public Accountants and Principal Accounting Firm Fees in the registrants definitive

proxy statement for the 20l annual meeting of shareholders which sections are incorporated by reference herein

40



PART IV

Item 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

and The following consolidated financial statements of A.T Cross Company and subsidiaries are

incorporated by reference to Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 29 2012 and December 31 2011

Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended December 29 2012 and December 31 2011 and

January 12011

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 29 2012

December 31 2011 and January 2011

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the Years Ended December 29 2012

December31 2011 and January 2011

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 29 2012 December 31 2011 and

January 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Listing of Exhibits

EXHIBIT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation and By-laws incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the registrants

report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1980

3.2 Amendment to Restated Articles of Incorporation incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the registrants

report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 1994

3.3 Amendment to By-laws adopted December 1988 incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the registrants

report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1989

3.4 Amendment to By-laws adopted February 1992 incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the registrants

report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1991

10.1 A.T Cross Company Unfunded Excess Benefit Plan as amended incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6

to the registrants report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 1994

10.2 AT Cross Company Executive Life Insurance Program incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the

registrants report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1997

10.3 AT Cross Company Deferred Compensation Plan for Employee Officers and Directors incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the registrants report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 28 2002

10.4 A.T Cross Company Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.5 to the registrants report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 28 2002

10.5 A.T Cross Company Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the registrants

report on Form lO-Q for the quarterly period ended July 2004

10.6 Executive Employment Contract Charles Mellen dated November 21 2004 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.9 to the registrants report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2005
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10.7 Executive Employment Contract Kevin Mahoney dated January 11 2005 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.10 to the registrants report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2005

10.8 A.T Cross Company Long Term Incentive Plan and Severance Program for senior management incorporated

by reference to the registrants report on Form 8-K filed October 25 2005

10.9 Credit Agreement and first amendment with Bank of America N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10
to the registrants report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended October 2009

10.10 Second amendment to Credit Agreement with Bank of America NA incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10 to the registrants report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2009

10.11 Third amendment to Credit Agreement with Bank of America N.A incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10
to the registrants report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 2010

10.12 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with Bank of America N.A incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10 to the registrants report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 2010

11 Statement Re Computation of Net Income per Share incorporated by reference to the Consolidated

Statements of Income financial statement in Item of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

18 Letter RE Change in Accounting Principle incorporated by reference to Exhibit 18 to the registrants report

on Form 0-K for the year ended December 31 2011

21 A.T Cross Company Subsidiaries Branches and Divisions

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

31 .1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certifications pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Management contract compensatory plan or arrangement

Exhibits See Item above
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly caused

this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

A.T CROSS COMPANY
registrant

By Is RUSSELL BOSS

Russell Boss
Chairman

Date March 13 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the following

persons on behalf of the registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

Is RUSSELL BOSS Chairman Director March 13 2013

Russell Boss

Is DAVID Whalen President Director March 13 2013

David Whalen Chief Executive Officer

Is KEVIN MAHONEY Vice President March 13 2013

Kevin Mahoney Chief Financial Officer

Is GARY SIMPSON Corporate Controller March 13 2013

Gary Simpson Chief Accounting Officer

Is BERNARD BUONANNO JR Director March 13 2013

Bernard Buonanno Jr

Is EDWARD COONEY Director March 13 2013

Edward Cooney

Is JACOB GAFFEY Director March 13 2013

Jacob Gaffey

Is DWAIN HAHS Director March 13 2013

Dwain Hahs

_____________________________________
Director

Harlan Kent

Is ANDREW PARSONS Director March 13 2013

Andrew Parsons

Is FRANCES PHILIP Director March 13 2013

Frances Philip
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Exhibit 21

Form 10-K Item 15A Exhibit 21

Cross Company

Subsidiaries Branches and Divisions

A.T Cross Asia Pacific Limited A.T Cross Asia Pacific Limited

Hong Kong Branch Singapore Branch

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Singapore

of the Peoples Republic of China

A.T Cross Asia Pacific Limited A.T Cross Company
Taiwan Branch French Branch

Taipei Taiwan The Republic of China Paris France

A.T Cross Deutschland GmbH AT Cross Hong Kong Ltd

Mainz Federal Republic of Germany Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

of the Peoples Republic of China

A.T Cross Limited A.T Cross Limited

Dublin Republic cf Ireland Luton Bedfordshire England

AT-Cross Services Mexico de R.L de C.V A.T Cross Shanghai Trading Company Limited

Mexico City Mexico Shanghai The Peoples Republic of China

A.T Cross Stationry Dongguan Company Limited A.T.X International Inc

Dong Guan City The Peoples Republic of China Lincoln Rhode Island

Comercializadora AT-Cross de R.L de C.V Cross Company of Japan Ltd

Mexico City Mexico Tokyo Japan

Cross Optical Group Inc Cross India PVT Ltd

Daytona Beach Florida Mumbai India
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Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos 333-175933 333-156095 333-42730 333-

66031 333-42915 033-64731 and 033-64729 on Forms S-8 of our reports dated March 13 2013 relating to the consolidated

financial statements of A.T Cross Company and the effectiveness of A.T Cross Companys intemal control over financial

reporting appearing in this Animal Report on Form 10-K of A.T Cross Company for the year ended December 29 2012

Qc2Z.4A LL/

DELOITTE TOUCHE LLP

Boston Massachusetts

March 13 2013
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

David Whalen certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of A.T Cross Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respet to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules l3a-15e and 15d-15e and internal control over financial reporting as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and l5d-l5f for the registrant and have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report

is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial in formation and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 13 2013 DAVID WHALEN
David Whalen

President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

Kevin Mahoney certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of A.T Cross Company

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material

fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made not

misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present

in all material respects
the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of and for the

periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e and internal control over financial reporting as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15f and lSd-15f for the registrant and have

designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the registrant including its consolidated

subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this report

is being prepared

designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by

this report based on such evaluation and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during

the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter
in the case of an annual report that has

materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal control over financial

reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the registrants board of directors or persons

performing the equivalent functions

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial

reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to record process summarize and

report financial information and

any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the

registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 13 2013 KEVIN MAHONEY
Kevin Mahoney

ChiefFinancial Officer
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Exhibit 32

FORM OF 906 CERTIFICATIONS

The certification set forth below is being submitted in connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 29 2012 the Report for the purpose of complying with Rule 13a-14b or Rule 15d-14b of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code

David Whalen the Chief Executive Officer and Kevin Mahoney the Chief Financial Officer of A.T Cross Company
each certifies that to the best of his knowledge

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Exchange Act and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results

of operations of AT Cross Company

Date March 13 2013 DAVID WHALEN
David Whalen

Chief Executive Officer

KEVIN MAHONEY
Kevin Mahoney
Chief Financial Officer
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Russell Boss

Chairman of the Board
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Class Director
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Managing Director
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Co Inc

Providence Rhode Island

Class Director

Edward Cooney
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Class Director 23
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Company Profile

Since 1846 the Cross name has been synonymous with devotion to

craftsmanship and quality lifetime guarantees and genuine beauty Today
AT Cross complements its writing instrument heritage with broad range

of premium personal accessories including reading glasses leather goods
and timepieces The Companys portfolio also includes the Costa and Native

sunglass brands designed for active sports enthusiasts These products are

sold in fine stores worldwide


